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MAKVOLTE

NERGY INDUSTRIES LIMITED

MAKE IN INDIA

Following the initiative of Make in India, launched in 2014 by
the Prime Minister, MaxVolt Energy Industries Limited is a
leading manufacturer of customized Lithium-ion battery packs.
There is a huge demand for Lithium-ion Batteries due to their
potlution-free and high-performing characteristics.

Corporate Overview

Established in 2019, MaxVolt Energy
Industries Limited is a leading
manufacturer and supplier of
advanced Lithium battery packs for
Electric Vehicles. We are committed to
powering the future of mobility with
reliable, efficient, and eco-friendly
energy sclutions




Corporate Owverview

From the first:spark of the day to the last light at night, MaxVolt Energy industries Limited
is committed to powering india’s progress Smart Auto Cut-Gff

oads, homes, and Indusirles, ouradvanced batteries and energy solutions enable Ultra-Fast Charging |
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MAXVOLT ENERGY INDUSTRIES LIMITED Corporate Ovearview

Dear Shareholders,

it gives me Iimmense pleasure o
present the financial performance of
Max\iolt Energy Industries Limited fer
the year ended March 31, 2025. This
year has been one of strong progress as
we continue to play a pivotal role in
India’s transition towards clean mobility
and sustainable energy solutions.

Despite global uncertainties, MaxVolt delivered robust growth, reflecting our
operational discipline and strategic foresight Revenue grew by 124% YoY to
£10,928.26 million, dniven by nising EV adoption and demand from both two-wheeler
and Three-wheeler OEMs. EBITDA increased by 127% to £1,575.58 million, supported
by cost efficiencies and improved capacity utilization, while PAT rose by 24% YoY to
#1011 68 million, even after higher depreciation and increased R&D spends. Our
balance sheet remains resilient with prudent working capital management, low
leverage, and ample liguidity.

Strategic Priorities

During FY 2024-25, we:
« Expanded our product portfolio across lithium-ion and advanced chemistries.
« Strengthened backward integration and supply chain security
« Enhanced R&D to deliver higher energy density and cost-efficient battery packs
« Invested in digitalization to improve efficiency and traceability

INNOVATION AT THE HEART OF OUR FUTURE

The electrification of transport and rising energy storage

needs are set to accelerate demand for advanced batteries.
Alongside capacity expansion and indigenous technology
development, we are committed to building a circular
economy through large-scale battery recycling initiatives.
This will not only secure crtical raw materials such as
lithium, nickel, and cobalt but also reduce import
dependence, mimimize environmental impact, and create
sustainable value chains. By integrating manufacturing with
recycling, Max\olt aspires to become a leader in India’s
closed-loop energy ecosystem.

GRATITUDE AND FORWARD VISION '

On behalf of the finance team, | extend my heartfelt
gratitude to our shareholders, board members, employees,
customers, and partners for their trust and support.
Together, we are building a future-ready enterprise that. .
creates endunng value, while advancing India’s clean energy |
transition and setting new benchmarks in  green
manufacturing and recycling leadership.

Thankyou far your immense support fo MaxVolt Enerygy
Industries Limited

Warm regards,

~Bhuvneshwar Pal Singh
Chief Financial Officer/ MD
MaxVolt Energy Industries Limited
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Dear Shareholders,

At MaxWolt Energy our mission is not
only to build batteries but to create
a sustainable energy future through
technology and innovation. A
battery is part of a journey from iis
first use, to second life applications,
and finally to complete recycling at
drill lewel Every stage must add
value and this is the cors of our
commitment to a circular economy.

This year we are expanding our plant capacity to more than 300 MWh and
setting up a lithium recycling plant at Aligarh on our industrial plot. These
steps will strengthen our ecosystem by extending battery life, reusing

matenals and reducing waste.

The energy storage industry is transforming with electric mobility and
renewable power. Max\Volt is preparing to lead this change by building a

complete ecosystem of manufactunng, second life and recycling. Our
vision 15 to make MaxVolt a technology driven company that creates
solutions to power progress today while protecting resources for

tomorrow.

Vishal Gupta
CTO & Co-Founder

Corporate Overview

Dear Shareholders,

At MaxVolt Energy our focus is on
building a strong and reliable
foundation for growth. This year we
are moving ahead with Lithium
recycling ‘at drill level, developing
‘second life usability for batteries and
expanding our plant capacity to
more than 300 MWh.

‘ energy solutions at scale

V>

o )

| We are also preparing new projects in advanced recycling, energy
storage products and further expansion of manufacturing These
steps will help us reduce waste, reuse materials and deliver clean

Sachin Gupta

COO & Co-Founder. .-
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Integrated Annual Report 2024-25

Dear Shareholders,

At MaxVolt Enerdy we began with
the belief that energy is the
foundation of progress and that
clean energy is the future.Step by
step we have built advanced
Lithium batiery solutions, extended
the life of used batteries, and are
now preparing to establish a
complete lithium recycling system.

With over 650 dealers, presence in 14 states, warehouses in 7 states and
SEervice access across 1040 pincodes, MaxVolt has created a strong network
that reflects our commitment to reach customers guickly and serve them

with excellence.

The energy storage industry i1s entering a new era with rapid growth in electric
mobility, renewable power and digital solutions. MaxVolt is prepared to lead
this change with innovabion, guality and a deep sense of responsibility

towards the envirocnment

Qur wvision is to build a complete ecosystem that covers battery
manufacturing, second life applications and recycling. Through this, we will
support India’s clean energy mission and create long term value for our

customers, partners and stakeholders.

Together we are not only powering vehicles and industries, we are powering

the future.

Satendra Shukla

CEO & Founder

Corporate Overview

Dear Shareholders,

At MaxVolt Energy our focus is to
connect innovation with people.
We are building not only
advanced lithium batteries but
also trust and  long-term
relationships in the market

This year our aim is to strengthen the MaxVolt brand, expand
awareness of clean energy selutions and support the growth of
our complete ecosystem of manufacturing, second life and

recycling.

sustainability and progress in the clean energy industry.

| Our vision 15 to make MaxVolt a name that stands for guality,

Mukesh Gupta
CMO & Co-Founder
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It gives me great pride to share the It is my privilege to present.an
progress  of MaxVolt Energy overview of the intermal audit
Industries Limited in FY 2024-25. function at Maxvolt Energy
Qur retail presence has grown Industries Limited for the year
rapidly, supported by rising ended March 31, 2025 Our role
demand for clean mobility and our B internal auditors is to provide
commitment to delivering reliable, independent assurance that the
high-quality e-battery sclutions. Company’s risk management,
governance; and internal control
processes are operating
effectively.

During the year, we: focused on strengthening compliance
frameworks, improving process efficiency, and ensunng
transparency across all business functions, Special attention
was given to inventory management, financial controls, and
regulatory adherence in line with the Company’s rapid growth
in the electric battery manufacturing sector.
Pawan Jha W?a.re':cg_mmitted fos pPpurtingtki;ﬂ B:J;.rd.;nd I'i-.ﬂanagem&_nt }ar;
. safeguarding assets, mitigating risks, and enhancing operation
Retail Sales Head & Co-Founder excellence. Looking ahead, our audit framework will continue to
evolve with digital tools and best practices to ensure that
MaxVolt remains resilient, compliant, and future-ready. "
| thank the Board, management team, and all stakeholders for
their cooperation and commitment to maintaining the highest
standards of governance.

This year, we strengthened our distribution reach, enhanced customer
engagement, and positioned MaxVolt as a trusted name in the evolving EV
ecosystem. Looking ahead, we remain focused on expanding accessibility,
driving innovation, and contributing to India’s green energy future
Thank you for your continued trust and support. —

Rt I @ ko 2el | i CA Shrikant Yadav
L iy e=x- __- Other Managaerial Personnel




Corporate Overview

MAXVOLT ENERGY INDUSTRIES LIMITED

' India’s Annual Battery Market Could

Surpass $15 Billion by 2030
USD 193.13 Bn USD 5.75 Bn
2028 2028
UsD63308n | P
CAGR 23.3% 2022 CAGRAZ2538
Global Lithium lon Battery Market Domestic Lithium lon Battery Market
Obtainable USD100 USD250 India‘s Li-ion USI?1 0
Market Million Million battery demand @ Billion
: : expected to Investment
Targeting 5% market e ok shoot up re::;r::l:;::;m

share
2022 2026 2030
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Powering Tomorrow with Precfﬁbﬁ

At MaxVolt Energy Industries Limited our world-class
manufacturing  facility—built on automation, scale, and
sustainability—are the backbone of our innovation journey. With
every unit we produce, we stay true to our commitment of
delivering safe, reliable, and future-ready lithium battery solutions.

Our strategically located facilities enable us to serve diverse
markets—from residential energy storage to electric mobility and
industrial applications. 8y expanding our footprint, we ensure
faster deliveries, reduced logistics cost, and seamless customer
support acress India.

Commitment to Green Manufacturing

Sustainability is at the heart of MaxVolt Energy Industries Limited. Our
plant are designed for energy-efficient operations, reduced carbon
emissions, and responsible waste management. By aligning with india's
clean energy vision, we are shaping a greener and more resilient future.
We prioritize a zero-compromise approach to workplace safety. From
advanced fire-suppression systems to regular skill-enhancement training,
MaxVolt ensures a culture where people, processes, and products are
safeguarded at every step. Every Maxvolt facility is built with the
flexibility to scale. Whether it's next-gen EV batteries, renewable energy
storage, or industrial-grade solutions, our manufacturing lines are

designed to adapt quickly to evolving market demands.

Building Trust Through Quality

At MaxVolt, quality isn’t just a standard—it’s a promise of trust. Every battery we
make undergoes rigorous testing, validation, and certification to ensure

‘consistent performance, safety. and reliability.

FmaEncal Owernew StEtutory Repons Fmancial sistements

@ DISTRIBUTION POINT

®  SERVICE CENTER

MaxVolit has muemd 2y,
84% locations in India

LUCKNOW

y —
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(Managing Director and Chief
h Financial Officer)

Mr. Bhuvneshwar Pal Sing

Mr. Bhuvneshwar Pal Singh, 38, Promoter, Managing Director, and
CFO, holds a B.Com. from Chhatrapati Shahu Ji Maharaj University,
Kanpur. With over 4 years in finance and gssociated with the Company
since 2020, he leads operations, finance; and strategy, ensuring

growth, quality, and teamwaork.

Mr. Vishal Gupta (chairmanand Whole

Mr. Vishal Gupta, 30, Promeoter, Choirman, and Whole-Time Director, .
holds a B.Tech in Mechanical Engineering and an advanced program in
E-Vehicle Technology from IIT Delhi . Associated with the Company 3
since inception and Director since 2021, hie oversees factory ~ 8 i
operations, production, and logistics, driving product innovation,

quality, and R&D in lithium batteries.

————_ Mr. Preet Kumar (ndependent directon)

| Mr. Preet Kumar, 32, Non-Executive Independent Directorsinee April

\ 10, 2024, is a Fellow Company Secretary with over 5 years’ experience
in secretarial compliance and has been a Practicing Company
Secretary since 2018. He also serves as Independent Director at Sona

Machinery Limited.

Ms. Ka\fita Di]{it (Independent director) |

Ms. Kavita Dixit, 34, Non-Executive Independent Director since April |
10, 2024, is o Fellow Chartered Accountant with over 8 years’ '
experience in accounts, taxation, and comptiance. She has been a L
practicing CA since 2017 and is associated with M/s BMSA and '

Associates since 2020. , ' ) )

e — T Mr_ Ajay Kumar (Independent director) y

=
— o
Wi i

Mr. Ajay Kumar, 35, Non-Executive [ndependentDirector since
September 11, 2024, isa Ch r::rtered._ﬂqmuu_mnt Wittt @' DISA
qualification and aver 7 years' experience in audit, taxation, and
accounting. A practicing CA 5inge 2018, he become a Partner at M/s
Agarwal URS & Co. in Februarf 2025.
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Satendra Shukla
Chief Executive Officer F

Sachin Gupta
Chief Operating Officer

Mukesh Gupta e
Chief Marketing Officer Y
Pawan Jha

Retail Sales Head |

Shrikant Yadav
Dther Managerial Personnel

Rajni Verma

Compliance Officer .—/
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MAXVOLT ENERGY INUJSTRIES L'MITE. Corporate Overview

Cur commitment to innovative sustainable energy solutions for
a better future

Foundeg in 2019, MaxVolt Energy Industries Limited has become a trusted leader inthe manufacturs and
supply of lithium battery packs for a wide spectrum of applications, including electric vehicles, energy
storage systems, and meaicsl davices.

Driven by adesp commitmentto Innovation, guslity, and sustainabiiity, we operaie state-of-the-art
mienufacturing facilities supported by a dedicated team -of experts. Qur products consistently mest the
highest global standargs, delivering retiable; efficient, and safe power s0iULions [0 our CUSIoMEers.

Curvision iz to engineer world-class Lithium Architecture for electric bikes. electnic scooters, solar enafgy
systems; &nd & diverse range of othersectors: These solutons are globaily complant, technologically
advanced, and ntellipently designed to-adoress both present cemands snd Tuture challenges—while
cresting tangible value for our clients:

Through comtinuous investment
in research and developmant
MaxVolt Energy Indusiries
Limit=d remsing ac the forefrant

of lithium battery innovation. By inerlng

lewveraging our technical Prn gI'ESS,

gEpErtise and Etrategic

partnerships,  we push the EVE‘W o
boundarne:s of what's possible in Homent

bathery technology—deiresring
sustalinabie, high-performance
energy- socluttans - that empower
industries and contribute to 2
cleaner greener future.

ASSOCIATED PARTNERS
3 % e i
e ¢ ~ 9 & e

= i | [ Versatiie] x |

x h...




MAXVOLT ENERGY INDUSTRIES LIMITED

The Board of Directors at MaxVolt Energy Industries Limited plays a pivetal role in
shaping the company's strategic direction and ensuring that our goals are
achieved with integrity and discipline. The Board sets the foundation for
responsible leadership — balancing innovation with strong governance, and
growth with accountability.

Opsn digicpu= =nd ders-ba
OScision-mEening guice  sbaieg
gmwth

ko, =topurdabiiiz, and The bosrd emphasizes Innovetion,
n =ntral 1o e suztaimshility amd diziz=l
‘transiormstion

THE FuTLE

VAT b? -

Corporate Overview

MaxVolt Energy Industries Limited is drivil okt bt
growth by strengthening core businesses, scaling clea
energy solutions, and building resilience for long-t

A e .? ’

Jupe -

Successfully developed our firet prototype,
Novembes— )
Ezzablizhed a producton unitwith a gaily
capanity of 15 bartery packe.

Decembsar-

Initiazed the first production trial ofthe
Max¥olt Energy Pack.

JSEnEETy —
Commenced first supply 108 Hydersbsd-bazed
QEM.
March —
Onboarded threse new retail dealarz.
Seprambar—
Enhancad production capaciny to6 20 battery
:packs per day.

Merch —
Expanded to 1& retall deslers, 2 suthorised
Earvicecentres; and sscured supply 1o 3 DEME.
Dacember — )

Grew our netwark to 22 retsst
deslers/distributons, Teervice centres, andg 4
CQEM-supply partnarshipe.

danuary =
{ncressed production capacity to 50 bamery packe
per day '

Oty —

Prapared o launch bettery charger produetion
line wath & completed prototypa.

Powering All of India

farch— |
Set a vislon to expand our retall metvork

to 80 dealers and service centres. |

acrossall statesof india

Listing on NSE Emerge

February — MaxVolt Energy FHdI._JS-‘IZrPEs Limited
was Usted on NSE Emerge Platform

13



MAXVOLT ENERGY INDUSTRIES LIMITED Corporate Ovearview

Accelerate w

We are dedicated to celivering the highest quality _pwur:ﬁaﬂﬂ

solutions are giobally com '
VALUES Ej!_ﬁﬁrﬁﬂﬁi ?ualmmﬂma 5&1?13:1%3% and ,
1 rough this cammitment, we create enduring value for or customers, partners,
"Every step forward at _@ T @} emmjrhaes and shareholders, ring value forolr ¢ W
MaxVoit Energy Industries NN Fores itmesa: ol Ay BICELNCE o
Limited is taken with care, . ﬁ%‘m -
balancing progress with our ;ﬂ s ﬁﬂ%’ﬁ?ﬁf@f -
dedication to innovation, m'“ P - \
. el & aim e transition sustainab
saltety, and sustinabiiny. e : AN e and integrated role in the glnbafinm
= Eﬂmafg e Eypmaéﬁmm .iﬁishs:ar?,n ;;f;tr:: ;Eum carbon
withooarageand ‘ colishertinn, puidsd xe:mhicahie ejm:g} - .
At MaxVolt Energy Industries 8‘% i mmﬂ: ;‘5'““ “flgag’ﬂmszf’ %Wﬂlﬂ*‘ﬂmﬁw I
Limited our value creation model e e FeEE G S R =
reflects our commitment to e
resource efficiency and long-term
stakeholder  wvalue.  Through RESPONSIBILTY
stronger  collaboration  across |% A
teams and an inclusive approach, el himopidhiln
we continue to enhance our ﬁﬂﬁ?n

impact: By refining and
strengthening this model, Maxvolt
is shaping a future driven by
sustained growth, responsible
practices, and meaningful progress. Power You Can Trust - High-

perdormance lithism batteres built
for EVs, energy storage, and
d.

Our proven track record Why Certified for Excellence —
reflects not just technical MaxVolt AIS, 150, and government
excellence, but a commitment Energy Emiiﬂcmpmmg
to creating long-term value for Matters o i

pmjﬂl:twﬂu e, 09090909090 . | TTMENEFRc-coreminrasssperespsgancoscess .

mnovatien and empowsering
communities.

E Energiting a Sust:hablﬁ
L fj-. Tomerrow - Driving clean snerdy -
o7




MaxVolt Energy Industries. Limited s
recogmized a= & trusted supplier of Lithium
Batteries for E-Scooters gnd Bikes, delivering
splutions -bulit - on - safety. reliability, and
sustalmability. Qur advanced Battery
hanagement System [EMS) safeguards against
o_eroharding amd owverheating, ensuring
gurzbility and consistent performance,

Designed to fit 2 wide range of models, our
batteries feature high energy density and
guice-charging capability, enabling [onger ndes
with minimal downtme: As an eco-friendly
alternative to conventional Datteries, they not
anly enhznce vehicle performance but siso
A reduce: carbon’ emissions, supporting the
1":: | transition to ciegner mobility.

E-Cycle Lithium Battery

Max\olt Energy Industries Limited offers fast-
charging Lithium  Batteries for electric cycles,
compatbie with a2 wide range of models and
brands. Designed for safery and durabiiity,
they feaiure advanced monitoring o prevent
overcharging and-overheating while ensuring
tonger life and reliable performance.

A= a leading suppiier, we provide nailonwide
availability and service support Eco-friendly
and efficlent, ‘our batteries reduce carbon
footprint and deiiver ciean, green energy,
making them the periect. .choice Tor
sustainable mobilicy

Corporate Overview

Through continuous innovation, MaxVolt ensures its products remain aligned
with market expectations, global sustainability trends, and technological
advancements, strengthening our leadership in the clean energy ecosystem.

/ E-Rickshaw Lithium Battery

MaxVolt Energy Industries Limited = & leading
rame in Lithium Batieny Manuofacturing for E=
Rickshass offering- reliable, affordabls, -and
eco-iniendly solutions: Our batteries deliver

o ———— e (CNccr rides on 2 single charge, reduce

downtime with fast-charging capability, and fit
zeamiessly into e-rickshaws without
COmMpPIDMISing passenger or cargo space.

Backed Dy an advanced Battery Management
System (BMS], they ensure safety, durability,
and consistent periormance. Compatible with
multiple modets, MaxVolt Lichium Batteries
provide high energy density, exisnded mileags,
and lower gperating: costs, while supporting a
cieaner; greener future:

Max¥olt Energy Indusifies Limited BCo-
friendly solutions are specifically enginssred
to complement -and optimize solar panel
systems, offering quick charging, exceptionat
energy density, and long-iasting ﬂurabﬂ[.iw.

Designed: with solar applications n mind, our
batteries maximize renewable energy STorage;
ensuring efficient use of eveny-uriit of power
generated With — minimal  degradation,
advancsd safety features, and Zero harmful
. ] emissions,  Max\Modt: batteries. ser new
Ma :-L"u"-i:.'l|’[_ E standards N clEan energy technology

15



MAXVOLT ENERGY INDUSTRIES LIMITED Corporate Overview

Annual 2024-25

Customized Battery Solution

MaxVoit Energy Indusiries Limited is-a trustad
name in Customized -Battery Solutions,
o= d_-&s:gn:_’. E'Il?md. o EDFCFﬁF profet Scooter  Batteries  enhanced with:
needs Using high-capacity lithium-ion cells, 7 i =
advanced BMSE -and smart charging, our Eraphone: tecinology. Hhise. srwantod

] F G : batteries are designed. to deliver faster
solutions ensure: safety, reliability, 2nd eco- /W f-

THF & T2

MaxVolt Energy Industries Limited |5
recognized 25 a trusted supplier of E-

A charging, higher emergy density, and
Triencly performarnce, suparior relizbility, making them ideal for

. . all etectric vehicke brands and modets:
Versatile and cost-=ffestive, our customizsd :

barteries serve diverse applications including Mok | Mo, 26-ME V-12 _ Souiped  with  cutting-edze  safery
slectronics, electric vehicles, ang renewabie v g ] s = gr-aphene bzftaria& i
H + eatures, i =
ENergy systems. With a focus on innovation durabiiity, - ethmianty, . an  Consisteit
and sustinabllity, MaxVolt dslivers powsr pEE‘FEIFF"IE.;SEE Wiﬂ'l: this inrlm'a;til:ln-
« Consumer Electropics - Solutions-that are both efficient and future- Mat‘!n[t ::u:m:tinuss i rerlati atE{tr":é

i read :
Industrial ¥ mobility, offering. riders: a smoother,

« Autom I:I'tl*-l'E_ longer, and more sustamabie journey
Benewabls Energy

+ Medical Devices

MaxVaolt Energy
Industries Limited
Serves Industries:

Lithium Battery Energy Storage

Solutionsz

MaxVolt Energy Industries Limited
provides scatable  Lithium  Bettery
Energy Storage Sysiems that ensure
rapid response Tor grid stabjlity and
backup power. With: high round=trip
efficiency, our solutions minimize
enargy loss and deliver long-term
SEVINEE

Built for longevity, our batteries last
longer than conventional options amd
seamlessly imtegrate with solar, wind,
and other renewablbes, helping

Our Energy Solutions: + Rasidential Energy Storage maxinize clean energy Use and support
are used by = Commerciatand industriat Use a sustainable future.
Applications: « Grid Stabilization

s Remote and OfF-Grid Areas

16



MAXVOLT ENERGY INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Corporate Overview

s0OLAg

MaxVolt  Enmergy  Industries
Limited lithium batteries for solar
street lights provide reliable and
efficient energy storage, ensuring
consistent lighting even during
tow suniight periods. They offer a

’ 4
N T oy
Ergrat) 9 sustainabie and costeffective

solution for urban and ruralareas.

MaxWolt Energy Industries bLimited Uthium
battenes are designed to deliver safe, reliable,
and long-lasting power for a wide range of
medical devices. Built with the highest safety
standards, they ensure continuous operation,
compact design for easy integration, and
consistent performance for critical applications
—making them the trusted choice for powering
essential medical equipment.

MaxVolt Energy Industries Limited portable
lithiuvm batteries deliver reliable and wversatile
power for a wide range of applications. Designed
for mobility and ease of use, they ensure
uninterrupted energy anytime, anywhere.
Compact, lightweight, and ideal for on-the-go
power needs:

Robot

Epeod Camiana

Toys and All Eleatronic Re

Gadgats

17



MAXVOLT ENERGY INDUSTRIES LIMITED
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MaxVolt Energy Industries Uimited Lithium
inverfer batteries are built. for high
efficiency, long lifee and reliable
performance. They provide staile backup
power for beth residential and
commercigl systems  with  minimal
maintenance, ensuring censistent and
dependable energy support.

MaxValt Energy Industries Limited lithium
batteries are engineered o deliver reliable
and scalable backup across  residential,
commercial, and industrial apolications.
Designed for efficiency, stability, and energy
independence, they ensure consistent
perfarmance for critical sefups inciuding
telecom towers, diesel generators, and data
centars,

Corporate Overview

DIESEL GENERATOR

g4
" ’..::u

SERVER ROOM

AFEEEEEER




MAXVOLT ENERGY INDUSTRIES LIMITED
e —————

Corporate Overview

Rechargeable batteries are redefining energy access, providing reliable
power from portable devices to entire households. With higher charge
cycles and efficiency, they now power lighting, electric vehicles, and
critical backup, underscoring their role in a sustainable energy future.
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Corporate Overview

Bhuvneshwar pal Singh

(! g Birector and Chief:

inancial Oficer)

EBringing Tirancizl experiise
znd managerial scamer, Mr
Bhuvneshwar Pal Simgh,
Promoter, MD, and CFO,
ensures smooth operations
and strategic progress: His
Tocus remaing. on efficiency,
sccountability,

Kavita Dixit

[independent director]

Ms. Kavita Dixit, 32, Non-
Executive Independent
Directocr, is 2 Fellow
Cnartered Accourmtant with
B+ years of professional
experience. She has been
with BMSA & Assogistes

and long- |
term sustaimability | |

Vishal Gupta

{Chalrman and Whole:
Time Director)

Mr. Vizhal Gupta, 30, serves.as

Promoter, Chsirman, =and
Whole-time Director of the
Compamy. With 2 stoong
zcsdemic  backdround  In

mechanicagland EV techinology,
he leads production, logistics,
and - RED, ensuring ouslity

standards.and advancing nest-
generstion batiery solutions. i

Ajay Kumar
[Independent directar]

Mr -Ajay ¥umar, 35,
Indepangent -Dirsctor
since Sept 2028 5 &
Chartered  Accountant
with: DISA and 7+ years’
ExpeErience in audit;

iEKation, and
accounting. | I

Preet Kumar
[Independent director)

Mr. Preet Kumar, 32 Non-
Executive Independent
hrector,. & & Felow
Company SecTetary with B
years® professional
expefience  =nd  =iso

STAKEHOLDER
RELATIONSHIP

r 5

‘ CHAIRPERSON i

Kavita
Dixit

Ajay kumar

{ MEMEERS J

4 Preet Kumar
4+ Bhuvneshwar Pal
Singh

# Prest Kumar
4 Vishal Gupia

||

NOMINATION
COMMITTEE

vishal Gupta:

¥ Prest Kumar % PreetKumar
& Kavita Dixit - HinmesiensFats

sinee 2020 and continues
her CA practice since 2017 |

serves on the Board of
Sone Machinery Limted ||
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During FY 2024-25, MaxVolt Energy Industries Limited was allotted 23,524 sq. m. of land in Aligarh, Uttar Pradesh for setting up a state-of-
the-art lithium battery recycling and repurposing facility. Strategically located near our Ghaziabad plant, this facility will enable seamless
integration between manufacturing and recycling, with an initial capacity of 5,200 MT annually. The project marks a significant step towards
building a circular battery economy, reducing import dependence, and strengthening India’s clean energy ecosystem.

-
[
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In February 2025, MaxVolt Energy Industries Limited achieved a
major corporate milestone with its successful listing on' NSE
Emerge. The event, marked by the traditional bellringing
ceremony, symbolized our transition into the next phase of
f - growth and value creation:

w-‘msu-m:;féi. - = Al The listing not only enhances our visibility and credibility in
; ; N capital markets but also strengthens our ability to access growth
; capital, expand our operations, and accelerate innovation In
lithium battery manufacturing and energy solutions.

This achievement reflects the trust of our stakeholders and the
commitment of our l|eadership team towards building a
sustainable, future-ready energy enterprise.

o)




MAXVOLT ENERGY INDUSTRIES LIMITED Corporate Overview
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« |50 90012015 certified, MaxVolt Energy Industries Limited upholds the
highest standards of guality and risk management to deliver safe, reliable,
and sustainable energy solutions.

» This certification reflects our commitment to consistent quality, effective
risk control, and customer trust in every product we create.

MaxVolt Energy Industries Limited is committed to conducting business « Through ISO 9001:2015, we ensure excellence in guality systems and

with integrity, accountability, and transparency, with strict adherence to proactive risk management across all operations.

all applicable laws, regulations, and internal policies. At MaxVolt Energy

Industries Limited, risk management is not just about safeguarding

against uncertainties—it is about enabling sustainable growth and

innovation. In an evolving global energy market, our Enterprise Risk

Management (ERM) framework allows us to anticipate disruptions, build

resilience, and respond with agility, ensuring long-term value creation.

Integrated Risk Framework & Communication

Uertificate

This (s 10 Canlify that
MAXVOLT ENERGY INDUSTRIES
LIMITED
MaxVolt Energy Industries Limited maintains robust internal control i e kA AR LABAD =
systems that are tailored to the nature and scale of our energy business. '
These systems ensure efficient asset utilisation, resource protection,

Internal Audit & Control Systems

financial integrity, and regulatory compliance. By embedding strong audit S DRI RO gL st oF
processes into our governance structure, we safeguard stakeholder Quality Management System
interests while maintaining transparency and trust. I so 90 0 1 s 20 1 5
]
Core Risk fnr iha following scope:

MANUFACTURER OF LITHIUM BATTERIES FOR ELECTRIC
VEHILES, ENERGY STORAGE SOLUTIONS, ELECTRONIC
GADGETS, MEMU AL EQUIPMENTS AND LITHIUAM CHARGES.

Foundational & J|
Risks Comtirbeate ME VQCCODER0224 ’ !
(LU gal L = M)sFelwumrs-2024 j_l__»;e_' r |
ir Sarveiliange T 3 19 Jrmaary-20 18 AT S |

: | 1 1] 1
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Facility that is equipped with State of the Art
technology which are future ready and bring high-
level efficiencies and improved productivity to
meet the future needs of the business

Manufacturing
Capacity

72,000 Units
Per Annum
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At MaxVolt Energy Industries Limited, our people are at the core of our
growth journey. We are committed to building a safe, inclusive, and
empowering workplace where every employee is valued, respected,
and motivated to contribute their best. Guided by principles of
fairness, diversity, and equal opportunity, we continue to strengthen
our culture of trust and collaboration.

TOTAL MALE FEMALE

NUMBER 120 100 20
5

= 100% B83.3% 16.7%

Advancing Progress Across Workstreams

At MaxVolt Energy Industries Limited, we have achieved significant
milestones across critical workstreams, ensuring the smocth and
timely execution of our lithium-ion cell project. These advancements
reflect our commitment to operational excellence, innovation, and
building a-strong foundation for future growth.

#e have sngaged miilled profeminnair eod ‘with acqomition of pew fEod  paecsl e hoee parteced with FAN Indis soppieo with
ar= coenmittad tocontipeods training and Sarolt  Srergy’ irdustried Lk s @hrmﬂmtmﬂ:uhﬁ:ﬂﬂpﬁdwﬂiﬁi}'ﬂ
developmerst ta strargthen L nchor lnzkirg foer pomitrestan of nes =l-T.|F|:t TRt mEteTiEE

caaebiiter
Organisation Development Project Construction Logistics Metwori
j il:'." _m
[ﬂu 1

e % =g
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Looking Ahead

MaxVolt Energy Industries Limited will continue to invest in
clean energy adoption, expand circular economy initiatives,
and strengthen climate-friendly practices across its value
chain. Qur vision is to create a sustainable growth path that
not only supports our business but also contributes
meaningfully to India’s clean energy transition.

Corporate Owverview

Amid today’s growing environmental challenges. MaxVolt
Energy Industries Limited remains firmly committed to
reducing its ecological footprint and aligning its operations
with global sustainability standards. We continue to d Ve
initiatives in climate responsibility, resource E‘Fﬁcmm:]r and
circular economy practices while ensuring long-term value
creation for all stakeholders
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Our Commitment

At Max\Volt Energy Industries Limited, we
believe that true strength lies not only in
innovation and technology but also in the
meaningful connections we build with
society: These connections, built on trust,
respect, and shared progress, form the
foundation of a more resilient, equitable,
and sustainable future.

Our steadfast. commitment to the
communities where we operate inspires us
to 2o beyond business and take initiatives
that uplift lives, create opportunities, and
foster inclusion. For us, success is not
measured solely by financial achievements
but by the positive impact we brmg«tq__
people and communities.

Key Highlights of the Initiative:

€y supported underprivileged families to celebrate Diwali with dign '_‘ )

"} Collaborated with Aao Sath Chalen to ensura:sh'mﬁt«and“ impactfL

? Distributed essential gaads;salar H@:ﬁng-, mwm 4 '_ %
2 Reinforced our philosophy of 'Powering Progress Responsi

31
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Lighting Livesﬁagnn&n

Spreading Light, Spreading Joy

At MaxVolt Energy Industries Limited, we believe true progress is CSR

measured not just in technological innovation but also in the positive

difference we create in society. This Diwali, MaxVolt partnered with Aao .

Sath Chalen, a leading national NGO, to brighten the festival for Maxvo“ Eﬂergy and Aau Sath Chalen Bflghten
underprivileged families living in slum communities. . .

Our team came together to distnbute essential supplies and lighting Dlwall for Slum Dwe"ers

solutions, symbolizing hope, care, and celebration for families who often
remain in the shadows during festive times.

| ety St arudery

&y e A (288

Business News
This Week

Maxvolt Energy and Aao Sath Chalen
Unite to Spread Diwali Joy Among Slum
Dwellers

Delhi: Maxvoit Energy, a prominent battery manufacturing company, has partnered with
Aao Sath Chalen, & national NGO dedicated to soclal upliftment, with the primary objective

Maxvolt Energy, a4 prominent battery manufacturing company, has partnered with Aao Sath
Chalen, & national NGO dedicated o sociel uplfiment, with the primany abjectve of bringing light irto
the [ves of underprivileged [amilies lmg in sium areas. This remarkable initiative, spesrieaded by Mr 32
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Innovations & Market Engagement - F
In April 2025, MaxVolt Energy Industries Limited debuted this series at
Ride Asia 2025 (Pragati Maidan, New Delhi}, displaying its innovative
inverter line that supports both lithium and lead-acid batteries. The
launch underscored MaxVolt's adaptability and ingenuity in delivering
next-gen energy solutions Machine MakerSaur Energy. The event also
featured the esteemed presence of Minister of State Ravneet Singh Bittu,
who praised the company’s sustainable energy advancements

.....
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In FY 2024-25 MaxVolt Energy Industries Limited was honored with a
prestigious appreciation award from BMSA & Finlexco India for our association
and unwavering support.

This recognition highlights our commitment to building strong partnerships,
delivering excellence, and contributing to the clean energy ecosystem. [t
reflects the trust we have earned in the industry and motivates us te continue
driving innovation and sustainability in every sphere of our work.

At MaxVolt Energy Industries Limited, we believe that such acknowledgements
are not just awards but a testament to our visien of pawering the future with
sustainable energy solutions.

N |

]’.: =y el I|l-‘ o
MaxVolt Energy Industries Limited || . e dBEY TrhAILS
being felicitated by BMSA & Finlexco ! Y S LT 8
India for outstanding contribution L AR SR R il "M
1!1 !E"’F. - - |

I' and association
| —

B ]




MAXVOLT ENERGY INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Board of Directors

Mr. Bhunmeshwar Pal Stngh
DM 7646080

{Hinagjng Director and Chief Financial 0fficar

e,

Vishal Gupta
DM 7E42571

Chainman and Whole Time Director

Preset Kumar
DIM 10371737
Independent director

Kavita Dixit
DIN 10684521
Indepandent director

Alay Kumar
DIN 10768422
Independent director

' !ey Managerial

Personnel

Satendra Shukla
Chief Exequtive Officer

Sachin Gupta
Chief Dpersting Officer

Mukesh Gupta
Chief Markating Officer

Pawan Jha
Retzil Sales Head

Rapmni Verma
Compliance Officer

A ﬁ'JL ol k_f‘\ ]

Corporate Overview

Banking Partner

HDFC BANK

Stock Exchanges

National Stock Exchange of India Limited
{Stock Code: MAXVOLT)
ISIN NUMBERINEIOAS01018

' Registrar and Share

Transfer Agent

AT KE&ASSOCIATES (CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS)
C— 44, Second Floor, Ten Tower,
Above indian Bank, Sector— 16,
vasundharz, Ghazizbad - 201002(UP)
Ph: +01 DEIRE30N06E, +H) BERISE4305

'- Internal Auditors

Bigshare Services Private Limited Office No 56-2, 6th
Floor, Pinnacle Business Park, Next to Ahura Centre,
Mahakali Caves Road, Andheri (East) Mumbai - 400033
Tel: 022 62638200 Fax No: 022 62635299 Email:

inv bi niing;com

SYADAV & Co.

Unit no 11189, 11¥ Floor, Gaur City Mall,

Greater Noida West

< Registered cfﬁmm |

F 104, Plot No. 1 HF United Plaza,
Community Centre, Karkardooma, New

Dethi 110092
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Financinl Ouerview

MaxVolt Energy Industries Limited stands as a leading player in Lithium
battery manufacturing. We drive innovation in energy storage solutions

with a diverse portfolio serving a wide range of industries and
applications.

Our advanced manufacturing facility enable us to deliver high-
guality products across domestic market. With innovation at the

core, we integrate cutting-edge technology to create energy

solutions that minimize environmental impact. Sustainability and
safety guide our approach, reflected in responsible sourcing and

efficient production practices.

Strong growth, stronger future

expanded market presence.

mﬂechng improved — margins
operational excellence.

EPS Growth Unlocked

Growth in EPS underscores MaxVoit's commitment to deliven
sustained value creation for shareholders while mamtaining a
strong foundation for future expansion.

« 100% y-o-y growth in Revenue in FY
2024-25, driven by robust demand: and .

e Profit After Tax (PAT) deubled y-oy,

Numbers that define us

in Lakhs

Revenue

10,747

EBITDA
1575

Profit after tax

1,011

EPS \

- 1169
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FINANCIAL DASHBOAF
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MAXVOLT ENERGY INDUSTRIES LIMITED ] Financial Overview

For the period/year ended on (Amount in ¥ lakhs)

Over the past four years, MaxVolt Energy Industries Mar23 Mar'24 Mar25

Limited has delivered a strong and consistent growth

trajectory. The Company has significantly strengthened its Total Income 618 1391.8 4.878.60 1392&3
revenue base, improved operational efficiencies, and - D
enhanced profitability year-on-year. EBITDA 32 312 634 1575.6
Our disciplined financial management, focus on - -
innovation, and expanding customer base have FBT 32 nz 634 1392,{5
contributed to robust margins and improved shareholder : -
value. The steady rise in earnings reflects the resilience of Tax Expense: 1.8 3.3 113.2 3809

our business model and owur ability to capture

opportunities in the fast-growing clean energy and electric . R
mability sector. PAT 1.4 27.9 520.8 1011.7

0.1 13 71 11.7

Steady Growth, Sustainable Profits, Stronger Future.

MaxVolt Energy Industries Limited remains .
committed to sustaining this mnmmﬁlm' '
by balancing growth with prudent -
investments, operational excellence, anda -
strong emphasis on longterm valle
G FEAGER :

— e

38



STATUTORY REPORTS

(V)

MaxVolt Energy@’

Energizing

39
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MAXVOLT ENERGY INDUSTRIES LIMITED
CIN: U40106DL2019PLC349854
Reg Office: F-108, Plot No. 1 F/F United Plaza, Community Centre, Karkardooma, New
Delhi - 110092, East Delhi, New Delhi, New Delhi, Delhi, India, 110092
E-mail ID: info@maxvoltenergy.com, Ph No.: 9818889835

MNOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT THE O6TH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF THE MEMBERS OF M/S. MAXVOLT
ENERGY INDUSTRIES LIMITED WILL BE HELD ON FRIDAY 26TH DAY OF SEPTEMEBER 2025 AT 12:00 P.M. (INDIAN
STANDARD TIME) THROUGH VIDEO CONFERENCING / OTHER AUDIO-VISUAL MEANS. THE VENUE OF THE MEETING
SHALL EE DEEMED TO BE THE REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY TO TRANSACT THE FOLLOWING BUSINESS: -

CROINARY BUSINESS:

1 Adoption of Audited Financial Statements for the
Financial year ended March 31, 2025:

To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial
Statements of the Company for the financial year
ended March 31, 2025, cansisting of the Balance Sheet,
Statement of Profit & loss and cash flow statement
together with the Reports of the Board of Directors and
the Auditors thereon.

In this connection, it is proposed to pass the following
resolution as an Ordinary Resolution with or without
modification:

“RESOLVED THAT the Annual Audited Financial
Statements of the Company for the financial year
ended March31, 2025 consisting of the Balance Sheet,
Siatement of Profit and Loss and Cash Flow Statement
together with accounting policies and notes forming
part of the accounts, and the Directors’ Report for the
year ended March 31, 2025 as circulated to the
shareholders and laid before the meeting by and are
hereby approved and adopted;

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Auditors’ Report as
received from M/s. A T K & Associates, Chartered
Accountants, (Firm Registration No. 18918C) on the
Annual Accounts of the Company for the financial year
ended March 31, 2025, as cwrculated to the
shareholders, and laid before the meeting by and are
hereby considered and adopted”

2. Re-appointment of Statutory Auditors of the
Company

To consider and If thought fit, to pass the following
resolution as an Ordinary Resclution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of
Sections 139, 142 and other applicable: provisions, if
any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (including
any statutory modification{s) or re-enactment(s)
thereof for the time being in force), and based on the
recommendation of the Audit Committee and the
Board of Directors, the members of the Company do
hereby re-appoint Mfs. A T K & Associates, Chartered
Accountants (Firm Registration No. 18918C), as the
Statutory Auditors of the Company for a term of 5 (five)
years, to hold office from the conclusion of 06™ Annual
General Meeting (AGM) till the conclusion of the 11
AGM of the Company, on such terms and conditions
including remuneration as may be decided by the Board
of Directors in consultation with the Auditors.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of
the Company (including any Committee thereof) be and
is hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds, matters
and things as may be necessary or desirable to give
effect to this resolution.”

3. Retirement by Rotation:

To appoint a director in place of Mr. Bhuvneshwar Pal
Singh (DIN: 07645099) Managing Director of the
Company, who retires by rotation at the ensuing Annual
General Meeting, and being eligible, offers his
candidature for re-appointment. .'

To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following
resolution as an Ordinary Resplution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisiens of Section
152 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the
GCompanies Act, 2013, and the rules made there under
(incluging any statutory modification{s) or re-
enaetment thereof for the time being in forcel;

I
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MAXVOLT ENERGY INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Regulation 25 read with part C of the second schedule
of SEBI (Depositories and Participant) Regulation 2018,
as amended from time to time and Article of Association
of the Company, subject to approval and such other
consent and permission as may be necessary, approval
of Members of the Company be and is hereby accorded
for re-appointment of Mr. Bhuvneshwar Pal Singh (DIN:
07645099), who retires by rotation and being eligible,
offers himself for re-appointment, as.a Director”

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

4. Appointment of Cost Auditors of the Company

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without
maodification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary
Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section
148 and other applicable provisions, it any, of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Audit
and Auditors) Rules, 2014, framed thereunder, as
amended from time to time and subject to such other
permissions as may be necessary, M/fs. PK & Associates,
Cost Accountants (FRN: 001452}, who are appointed as
the Cost Auditors of the Company by the Board of
Directors of the Company, to conduct audit of the cost
records of the Company be paid remuneration for the
Financial Year ending March 31, 2026, of 70.000/-
(Rupees  Seventy Thousand  Onlyl  including
reimbursement of travelling and other out of- pocket
expenses incurred by them in connection with the Audit
be and is hereby ratified”

5. Appointment of Secretarial Auditors of the Company

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without
madification{s), the following resolution as an Ordinary
Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of
Regulation 24A of the Securities and Exchange Board of
India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 {("SEBI Listing Regulations’) read with
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, each
as amended, and based on the recommendation(s) of
the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors of the
Company (‘Board’), Mr. Rohit Verma, Company
Secretary in Practice, having peer review number
6153/2024, be and is hereby appointed as the
Secretarial Auditors of the Company for a period of five
years to hold office from the conclusion of this Annual
General Meeting till the conclusion of the 11th Annual
General Meeting of the Company to be held in the year
2030, to conduct Secretanal Audit of the Company in

terms of Section 204 and other applicable provisions
of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Regulation 244
and other applicable provisions of the SEBI Listing
Regulations, for the period beginning from the
Financial Year 2025-26 through the Financial Year
2029-30, at such remuneration as may be: mutually
agreed upon between the Board, based on the
recommendation(s} of the Audit Commitieg, and the
Secretarial Auditors of the Company.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board and/or any
person autherised by the Board, be and s hereby
authorised, severally, to settle any quastion, difficulty
or doubt, that may arise in giving effect to this
resolution and to do all such acts, deeds, matters and
things, as may be considered necessary, desirable and
expedient to give effect to this Resolution and/ or
otherwise considered by them to be in the best
interest of the Company”

By order of the Board
MaxVolt Energy Industries Limited
Place: New Delhi

Date: 27/08/2025 sd

Bhuvneshwar Pal Singh
Managing Director and CFO

DIN: 07645099

Address: A-52, New Ashok Nagar,
Vasundhra Enclave, Ghazipur,
East Delhi —110096
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Notes:

1 The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act’) in respect of the
Businesses menfioned under Item Nos. 4 & 5 above, to be transacted at the Annual General Meeting (AGM or Meeting)
is annexed hereto.

2 Pursuant to the General Circular No. 09/2024 dated September 19, 2024, issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs
(MCA) and circular issued by SEBI vide circular no. SEBI/ HO/ CFG/ CFDPeD-2/ P/ CIR/ 2024/ 133 dated October 3, 2024
("SEBI Circutar™ and other applicable circulars and netifications issued (including any statutory modifications or re-
enactment thereof for the time being in force and as amended from time to time, companies are allowed to hold
EGM/AGM through Video Conferencing (VC) or other audio visual means (OAVM), without the physical presence of
members at a common venue. In compliance with the said Circulars, EGM/AGM shall be conducted through VC / CAVM.

3. Pursuant to the provisions of the Section 105 of the Companies Act, a person can act as proxy on behalf of members
not exceeding fifty and holding in the aggregate not more than 10% of the total share capital of the Company carrying
voting rights. Further, a member holding more than ten percent of the total share capital of the Company carrying
voting rights may appoint a single person as proxy and such person shall not act as proxy for any other person or
shareholder,

Since this AGM is being held pursuant to the MCA and SEBI Circulars through VC/OAVM, physical attendance of
Members has been dispensad with. Accordingly, the facility for appointment of proxies by the Members will not be
available for the AGM and hence:the Proxy Form, Attendance Slip, and route map of AGM are not annexed to this
Notice.

4 Pursuant to Circular Nos. 14/2020, 172020, 20/2020, 02/2021, 19/2021, 21/2021 2/2022 dated April 08, 2020, April 13,
2020, May 03, 2020, January 13, 2021, December 08, 2021, December 14, 2021 and May D5, 2022 followed by General
Circular No. 10/2022 dated December 28, 2022, 09/2023 dated September 25, 2023 and 08/2024 dated September 19,
2024 and all other relevant circulars issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (hereinafter collectively referred to as
"MCA Circulars”) and "SEBI" Gircular No. SEBI/ HO/CFD/PoD-2/P/ CIR/2023/4 dated January 05, 2023, October 7, 2023
and October 3, 2024 (hereinafter referred to as "SEBI Circulars™) physical attendance of the Members to the AGM venue
is not required and Annual General Meeting (AGM) be held through Video Conferencing (VC) or Other Audio Visual
Means {OAVM). Hence, Members can attend and participate in the ensuing AGM through VC/ CAVM. The Registered
office of the Company shall be deemed to be the venue for the AGM

5. Pursuant to the Circular No_14/2020 dated Apnl 08, 2020, issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, the Fam[;ty to
appoint proxy to attend and cast vote for the members is not available for this EGM/AGM. Hnwever The—ﬁudy
Corporates are entitled to appoint authorized representatives to attend the EGM/AGM through VC/QAVM and
participate there at and cast their votes through e-voting.

6. The Members can join the EGM/AGM in the VC/OAYM mode 15 minutes before and after the scheduled time of the
commencement of the Meeting by following the procedure mentioned in the Notice. The facility of participation at the
EGM/AGM through VC/OAVM will be made available for 1000 members on first come first served basis. This will not
include large Shareholders {Shareholders holding 2% or more shareholding), Promoters, Institbitional Investors,
Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, the Chairpersons of the Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration
Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee, Auditors etc. who are allowed to attend thie EGM/AGM without
restriction on account of first come first served basis. =

7. The attendance of the Members attending the EGM/AGM through VC/OAVM will be counted for the purpose of
reckening the guorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013

8. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amiended) the Secretarial Standard on General Meetings (S5-2) issued
by the ICSI and Regulation 44 of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Reguirements) Regulations 2015 {as amended),
and the Circulars issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs from time to time the Company is providing facility of
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remote e-Voting to its Members in respect of the business to be transacted at the EGM/AGM. For this purpose, the
Company has entered into an agreement with Bigshare Services Private Limited for facilitating voting through
electronic means, as the authorized agency. The facility of casting votes by 2 member using remote e-Voting system
as well as e-voting on the date of the EGM/AGM will be provided by Bigshare Services Private Limited.

8. In line with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020, the Notice calling the
AGM has been uploaded on the website of the Company at hitps://www.maxvoltenergy.com. The Notice can also be
accessed from the websites of the Stock Exchanges National Stock Exchange of India Limited at www.nseindia.com
respectively and the EGM/AGM Notice is also available on the website of Bigshare Services Private Limited (agency
for providing the Remote e-\Voting Tacility) 1.e https//ivote bigshareonline.com.

10. EGM/AGM has been convened through VC/OAVM in compliance with applicable provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 read with MCA Circular issued from time to time.

11 Members who have not registered their e-mail addresses so far are requested to register their e-mail address for
receiving all communication including Annual Report, Notices, and Circulars etc. from Company electronically.

12 The Secunties and Exchange Board of India ("5E817) has mandated the submission of Permanent Account Number
(PAN) by every participant in securities market. Members holding shares in electronic form are, therefore, requested
to submit the PAN to their depository participants with whem they are maintaining their demat accounts and are
requested to intimate all changes pertaining to their bank details such as bank account number, name of the bank
and branch details, MICR code and IFSC code, mandates, nominations, power of attorney, change of address, change
of name, e-mail address, contact numbers, etc, to their depository participant (DP).

13. SEBI vide its latest Circular dated March 16, 2023, in supersession of earlier Circulars, has reiterated that it is
mandatory for all holders of physical securities to furnish their PAN as well as ICYC Documents to the RTA {(Registrar
and Share Transfer Agent) of the Company in respect of all concerned Folios. The Folios wherein even any one of the
PAN, Address with PIN Code, Email address, Mobile Number, Bank Account details, Specimen Signature and
Nomination by holders of physical securities are not available on er after October 01, 2023, such Folios shall be
frozen by the RTA. SEBI has introduced Form ISR - 1 along with other relevant forms to lodge any request for
registering PAN, KYC details or any change/updation thereof In terms of the aforesaid SEBI Circular, effective from
January 01, EDZZ, any service requests or complaints received from the member, are not processed by HTA tﬂ.i thE.
aforesaid details/ documents are provided to RTA.

14 Members holding shares in physical form, in identical order of names, in more than one folio are requested to
send fo the company, the details of such folios together with the share certificates along with the requisite KYC
Documents for censolidating their holdings in one folio. Requests for consolidation of share certificates shall be
processed in dematenalized form. I

15. Members desiring any information on the accounts at the AGM are reguested to write to the Cﬁmpany at least 7
days in advance through E-mail at cs@maxvolienergy.com. The same shall be replied by the Cumpany accordingly.

16. SEBI vide its notification dated January 24, 2022 has mandated that all requests far transfer of securities
including transmission and transposition requests shall be processed only in dematerialized form: In view of the
same and to eliminate all risks associated with physical shares and avail various benefits of dematerialization.
Members holding shares in physical form are requested to take necessany steps with their respective Depository
Participants to dematerialize their physical shares. -
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17. Pursuant to Section 91 of the Act and Regulation 42 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, the register of members and the share transfer books of the Company will remain closed from
Saturday, September 20, 2025 to Friday, September 26, 2025 (both days inclusive} for the purpose of 06th AGM of
the Company.

18. All documents referred to in the Notice and accompanying Explanatory Statement, as well as the Annual Report,
is open for inspection at the Registered Office of the Company on all working days during normal business hours up
to the date of the Meeting.

18 Members seeking any information with regard to Accounts of the Company and proposed Resolutions are
requested to send their queries in writing to the Company at its Registered Office, at least ten days before the dateof
the Meeting, to enable the Company to furnish the required information at the Meeting.

20. The Register of Directors and Key Managenal Personnel and their Shareholding maintained under Section 170 of
the Companies Act, 2013 and the Register of Contracts or arrangements in which Directors are interested under
Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 will be available for inspection in electronic mode will be made available
electronically for inspection by Members'of the Company during the meeting.

21 The annual accounts of the subsidiary companies along with the related detailed information are available for
inspection at the Registered Office of the Company and copies will be made available to Shareholders upon request.

22 Brief details of the Directors seeking appointment/reappointment along with details of other Directorship,
shareholding in Company, nature of their expertise in specific functional areas pursuant to Regutation 36(3) of SEEI
{Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and in terms of Secretarial Standard -2 forms
part of this Notice.

23 The members who have cast their vote by remote e-voting prior to the AGM may also attend the AGM but shall
not be entitled to cast their vote again.

24 Voting rights shall be reckoned on the paid up value of shares registered in the name of the member/beneficial
owners (in case of electronic shareholding) as on the cut- off date/ record date i e. Friday, 19th September, 2025.

.-‘-“--_

25. In case of joint holders, the Member whose name appears as the first holder in the order of names as per ﬁﬂ'ei
Register of Members of the Company will be entitled to vote at the AGM.

26. The Board of Directors has appointed Mr. Rohit Verma, Company Secretaries (COP No. 20729) as the Scrutinizer
to scrutinize the voting at the meeting and remote e-voting process in a fair and transparent manner

I
27 The remote e-voling perod commences on Tuesday, 23rd September, 2025 (3:00 am} and ends on Thursday, 25th
September, 2025 (5:00 pm). During this period members of the Company, holding shares either in ghysi_cai. formorin
dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date of Friday, 13th September, 2025 may cast their vote by remote e-voting.
The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by Bigshare Services Private Limited for-veting thersafter Once the
vote on a resolution is cast by the member, the member shall not be allowed to change it subsequently. The Resulis
declared along with the report of the Scrutinizer shall be forwarded to the NSE within 48 hours of the conclusion of
Annual General Meeting and shall also be placed on the website of the Company https://www.maxvoltenergy.com and
on the website of Bigshare Services Private Limited ie https://ivote bigshareonline.com.

28. Instructions for Shareholders/ Members to Speak during the &nnual General Meeting through VC/OAVM platform:
- Shareholders who would like to speak during the meeting must register their request at least 3 days in advance with
the company on E-mail ID cs@maxvoeltenergy.com.
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* Shareholders will get confirmation on first cum first basis depending upon the provision made by the client.

» Shareholders will receive “speaking serial number” once they mark attendance for the meeting.

» Other shareholder may ask questions to the panellist, via active chat-Board during the meeting.

* Please remember speaking serial number and start your conversation with panelist by switching on video mode and
audio of your device. Shareholders are requested to speak only when moderator of the meeting/ management will
announce the name and serial number for speaking.

29 Instructions for remote e-voting and joining the AGM are as follows:

|. The voting period begins on Tuesday, September 23, 2025 at 09:00 AM (IST) and ends on Thursday, September 25,
2025 at 05:00 P.M. During this period shareholders of the Company, holding shares either in physical form or in
dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date September 19th 2025 may cast their vote electronically. The e-voting
module shall be disabled by Bigshare Services Private Limited for voting thereafter.

It. Shareholders who have already voted prior to the meeting date would not be entitled to vote at the meeting venue.

Il Pursuant to SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated 09.12.2020, under Regulation 44 of
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, listed
entities are reguired to provide remote e-voting facility to its shareholders, in respect of all shareholders’ resolutions.
However, it has been observed that the participation by the public non-institutional shareholders/retail shareholders
is at a negligible level

Currently, there are multiple e-voting service providers (ESPs) providing e-voting facility to listed entities in India. This
necessitates registration on various ESPs and maintenance of multiple user IDs and passwords by the shareholders.

in order to increase the efficiency of the voting process, pursuant toa public consultation, 1t has been decided to
enable e-voting to all the demat account holders, by way of a single login credential, through their demat accounts/
websites of Depositories/ Depository Participants. Demat account holders would be able to cast their vote without
having to register again with the ESPs, thereby, not only facilitating seamless authentication but also enhancing ease
and convenience of participating in e-voting process.

IV._In terms of SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFDfCMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility
provided by Listed Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through
their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are advised to update
their mobile number and email Id in their demat accounts in order to access e-\Voting facility.

T —

1. Pursuant to above said SEBI Circular, Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meetings for Individual
shareholders holding securities in Demat mode is given below:

Type of shareholders Login Method

1) Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can
login through their existing user id and passwerd. Option will be
Individual Shareholders made available to reach e-Voting page without any further
. e authentication. The URL for users to logm to Easi/Easiest Is
holding securitiesinDemat  pyipewen cdslingia.com/myeasitokendhomellosin o visit
mode with CDSL CDSL website www.cdslindia.eom and click on-togin icon & New
Bystem Myeasi Tab apd then use your existing my easi

usermarme & password.
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2)ATter successful login the Easi [ Easiest user will be able to see the
e-Voting option for eligible companies where the evoting is in
progress as per the information provided by company. On clicking the
evoting option, the user will be able to see e-Voting page of
BIGSHARE the e-Voting service provider and you will be re-directed
to i-Vote website for casting your vote during the remote e-\Voling
period. Additionally, there 15 also links provided to access the system
of all e-Vioting Service Providers i.e BIGSHARE, so that the user can
visit the e-Voting service providers’ website directly.

3)If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is
available at
https:/iweb.cdslindia. com/myeasitoken/Registration/EasiRegistration

A)Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by
providing Demat Account Number and PAN No. from a link
https://evoting cdslindia.com/Evoting/Evotinglogin The system will
authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as
recorded in the Demat Account. After successful authentication, user
will be able to see the e-Voting option where the evoting is in
progress, and also able to directly access the system of all e-Voting
Service Providers. Click on BIGSHARE and you will be re-directed to i-
Vote website for casting your vote during the remote e-voting period.

1)If you are already registered for NSDL IDeAS facility, please visit the
e-Services website of NSDL Open web browser by typing the
following URL: hitps://eservicesnsdlcom either on a Personal
Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of eServices is
taunched, click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login™ Which.ia®
available under ‘IDeAS’ section. A new screen will open. You will have
to enter your User ID and Password. After successful authentication,
you will be able to see e-Voting services. Click on "Access to e-Voling”

Individual Sharehelders holding under e-Voting services and you will be able to see e-Voting page.
securities in demat mode with Click on company name or e-Voling service provider name BIGSHARE
NSDL and you will be re-directed to i-Vote website for caéting your vote

during the remote e-Voting penod or joining virtual mg&ttng & voting
during the meeting.

2)if the user is not registered for IDeAS e-Servicss, ﬂpnun to register

is available at hitps://eservices.nsdlcom. Select "Register Online for
IDeASs “Portal or click at

https://eservices nsdl com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg jsp
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3Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL Open web browser by typing
the following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdicom/ either on a
Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Voting
system is launched, click on the icon "Login® which is available under
*Shareholder/Member section. A new screen will open. You will have
to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account number
hold with NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on
the screen. After successful authentication, you will be redirected to
NSDL Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on
company name or e-Voting service provider name BIGSHARE and you
will be redirected to -Vote website for casting your vote dunng the
remote e-Voling pericd or joining virtual meeting & voting dunng the
meeting.

4)For OTP based login you can click on
https://eservices.nsdlcom/SecureWeb/evoting/evotinglogin jsp. You
will have to enter your &-digit DP 1D 8-digit Client |1d, PAN No,
Verification code-and generate OTP. Enter the OTP received on
registered email id/mobile numier and click on login. After successful
authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL Depository site
wherein you can see e-Voting page with all e-Voting Service
Providers. Click on BIGSHARE and you will be re-directed to i-vote (E-
voting website) for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting
period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account
through your Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for
e-Voting facility. After Successful login, you will be able to see e-
Individual Shareholders (holding Voting option. Once you click on e-Voling option, you will be
securities in demat mode) login redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful
through their Depository authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click on
Participants company name or e-Voting service provider name and you-will be.
redirected to e-Voting service provider website for casting your vote
during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting
during the meeting.

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User 1D and
Forget Password option-available at abovementioned website. '

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues re lated to login
through Depository i.e. CDSL and NSDL

Login Type Helpdesk details
Members facing any technicalissuein login can contact

CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at
helpdesk evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at toll free

Individual Shareholders holding securities in Demat
mode with CDSL

Individual Shareholders holding securities in Demat Mgﬁihem facing any te;hrjicaL Issue in login can contact
mode with NSDL NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at

eﬁ-fnting@ nsdl.com or call at 022- 48867000.
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2. Login method for e-Voting for shareholder other than individual shareholders holding shares in Demat mode &
physical mode is given below:

= You are requested to launch the URL on internet browser: https://ivote bigshareonline.com
* Click on "LOGIN™ button under the INVESTOR LOGIN’ section to Login on EVoting Platform.

» Please enter you "USER 1D’ (User id description is given below) and "PASSWORD  which is shared separately on you
registeremail id.

1. .Shareholders holding shares in COSL demat account should enter 16 Digit Beneficiary 1D as user id.

2. Shareholders holding shares in NSDL demat account should enter 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client ID
as user id.

3. Shareholders holding shares in physical form should enter Event No + Folio Number registered with the Company
as userid.

Note If vou ove not receiver ony user igd or password please eémail from vour registered email id or contact i-vote helpdesk team. (Emgil id ond
contoct numbar arg mentionad in helpdask section).

* Clickon | AM NOT A ROBOT (CAPTCHA) option and login.

MOTE: IT Shareholders are holding shares in demat form and hawve registered on 1o 2-Yoting system of htops/ivote.bigshareonline.com andfor voted
on an.eariier event of any company then they can use their existing uzer idand password to login

« |f you have forgotien the password: Click on "LOGIN" under INVESTOR LOGIN' tab and then Click on “Forgot your
password?

« Enter "User ID” and "Registered email D" Click on | AM NOT A ROBOT (CAPTCHA) eption and click on ‘Reset’

fincose o shareholdar is having valid email oddrass; Password will be sent to his /her registered e-moil oddress).

Voting method for shareholders on i-Vote E-voting portal: =

s After successful login, Bigshare E-voting system page will appear.

¢ Click on "VIEW EVENT DETAILS (CURRENT)” under ‘EVENTS' option on investor portal

* Select event for which you are desire to vote under the dropdown option,

« Click on "VOTE NOW" option which is appearing on the right hand side top corner of the page.

» Cast your voie by selecting an appropriate option "IN FAVOURT, "NOT IN FAVOUR™ or "TABSTAIN” and click on "SUBMIT
VOTE". A confirmation box will be displayed. Click "OK” to confirm, else "CANCEL" to modify.-Ohce you confirm, you
will not be allowed to modify your vote.

» Once you confirm the vote you will receive confirmation message on display screen and also you will receive an email
on your registered email id. During the voting period, members can legin any number of times till they have voted on

the resolution(s). Once vote on a resolution is casted, it cannot be changed subseguently.

» Shareholder can "CHANGE PASSWORD™ or "VIEW/UPDATE F'F?F{iFJLE“ under “PROFILE” option on investor portal.
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3. Custodian registration process for i-Vote E-Voting Website:

* You are requested to launch the URL on internet browser: https:/fivote bigshareonline.com

« Click on "REGISTER" under "CUSTODIAN LOGIN', toregister yourself on Bigshare i-Vote e-Voting Platform.
« Enter all required details and submit.

» After Successful registraticn, message will be displayed with "User id and password will be sent via email on your
registered email id”

NOTE: If Custodian have registered on to e-Voting system of https://ivote bigshareonline.com and/or voted on an
earlier event of any company then they can use their existing user1d and password to login.

» if you have forgotten the password: Click on "LOGIN" under “CUSTODIAN LOGIN' tab and further Click on “Forgot
your password?

s Enter"User ID” and “Registered email ID” Click on | AM NOT A ROBOT (CAPTCHA) option and click on "RESET.

(in case a custodian is having valid email address, Password will be sent to his / her registered e-mail oddress)
Voting method for Custodian on i-Vote E-voting portal:

= After successful login, Bigshare E-voting system page will appear.
Investor Mapping:.

s Firstyou need to map the investor with your user 1D under "DOCUMENTS” option on custodian portal

1.Click on *“DOCUMENT TYPE" dropdown option and select document type power of attormey (POAJL

2.Click on upload document *CHOOSE FILE™ and upload power of attorney (POA) or Board resolution for
respective investor and click on "UPLOAD"

Note: The power of attorney (POA) or Board resolution has to be named as the "investoriD_pdf* (Mention Demat
account number as Investor 1D.)

3Xour investor is now mapped and you can check the file status on display.

‘ —

e To castyour vote select "VOTE FILE UPLOAD” option from left hand side menu on custodian portal.

+ Sglect the Event under dropdown option.

= Download sample voting file and enter relevant details as required and upload the same file under upload
document aption by clicking on "UPLOAD™ Confirmation message will be displayed on the sereenand also you

can check the file status on display (Once vote on a reselution is casted, it cannot be changed subsequently).

Custodian can "CHANGE PASSWORD” or *VIEW/UPDATE PROFILE” under "PROFILE” option on custodian portal.

Helpdesk for queries regarding e-voting:

Login type Helpdesk details .
; ez v In case shareholders/ investor have any gueries regarding E-voting, you may
E_ha rEhﬂ,ld er’; ﬂEn o than |ndfv1duak refer the Freguently Asked Questions (FAQST and i-Vote e-Voting module
sharehoiders holding shares in Demat 5 7 I i : i
: available at hitps:/fivbte bigshareonline com, under download section or you
mode & Physical mode.

can email us to ivote@bigshareonline.com or call us at: 022-62638338
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4. Procedure for joining the AGM/EGM through VC/ OAVM:

For shareholder other than individual shareholders holding shares in Demat mode & physical mode is given below:

§ The Members may attend the AGM through VC/ CAVM at https://ivote bigshareoniine.com under Investor login by
using the e-voting credentials (Le., User |D and Password).

§ After successful login, Bigshare E-voting system page will appear.

§ Click on "VIEW EVENT DETAILS (CURRENT)” under "EVENTS' option on investor portal.

§ Select event for which you are desire to attend the AGM/EGM under the dropdown option

§ For joining virtual meeting, you need to click on *VC/OAVM” link placed beside of "VIDEC CONFERENCE LINK"
option.

§ Members attending the AGM/EGM through VC/ OAVM will be counted for the purpose of reckoning the guorum
under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013

The instructions for Members for e-voting on the day of the AGM/EGM are as under:-

& The Members can join the AGM/EGM in the VC/ DAVM mode 15 minutes before the scheduled time of the
commencement of the meeting. The procedure for e-voting on the day of the AGM/EGM Is same as the instructions
mentioned above for remote e-voting.

& Only those members/shareholders, who will be present in the AGM/EGM through VC/CAVM Tacility and have not
casted their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be
eligible to vote through e-\loting system in the AGM/EGM.

& Members who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the EGM. However, they will not be
eligible to vote at the AGM/EGM.

Helpdesk for queries regarding virtual meeting:

In case shareholders/ investor have any queries regarding virtual meeting, you may refer the Frequently Asked
Questions (‘FAQs) available at https://ivote bigshareonline.com, under download section or you can emailusto
wote@bigshareonline.com or call us at: 1800 22 54 22, 022-62638338. . i
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MAXVOLT ENERGY INDUSTRIES LIMITED
CiN: U40106DL2019PLC349854
Reg Office: F-108, Plot No. 1 F/F United Plaza, Community Centre, Karkardooma, New Delhi -
110092, East Delhi, New Delhi, New Delhi, Delhi, India, 110092
E-mail ID: info@maxvoltenergy.com, Ph No.: 9818889835

Annexure to Item no. 3 of the Notice
Details of Directors seeking appointment / re-appointment at the ensuing Annual General Meeting
(In pursuance of the SEBI Listing Regulations and Secretarial Standard-2 on General Meetings)

Name of Date of Date of | Qualifications | Expertise List of other Relationship with
the Date Birth Appointm in specific Companies other Directors and
of and (age) ent on the functional! (excluding Private other Key
number of Board area: Companies) in Managerial
shares which Directorships | Personnel of the
held in the and Committee Company:
company Chairmanships/Me
mberships, if any:
Bhuvneshwar | 06.03.19587 | 29.11.2022 B.com Finance None ;:t[:?::ct::rt:r
Pal Singh (38 Years) Key M ial
(16,19,776 ¥ W anREana
! Personnel of the
shares)
Company

For other details such as number of meetings of the Board/Committees attended during the year and
remuneration drawn please refer to the Corporate Governance Report which is part of this Annual Report
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MAXVOLT ENERGY INDUSTRIES LIMITED
CiN: U40106DL2019PLC349854

Reg Office: F-108, Plot No. 1 F/F United Plaza, Community Centre, Karkardooma, New Delhi -
110092, East Delhi, New Delhi, New Delhi, Delhi, India, 110092
E-mail ID: info@maxvoltenergy.com, Ph No.: 9818889835

ANNEXURE TO THE NOTICE
Explanatory statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”)
in respect of special business

Item No. 4.

In accordance with the provisions of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013("Act™) and the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014 ("Rules”), the Company is required to appoint a Cost Auditor te audit the cost records of the
Company.

On recommendation of the Audit Committee, the Board has approved the appointment of M/s. PK & Associates,
Cost Accountants as the Cost Auditor of the Company Tor the Financial Year 2025-26 at a remunearation of 70,000/-
including reimbursement of all out-of-pocket expenses incurred, if any, in'connection with the cost audit. The
remuneration of the cost auditer is to be ratified by the members in accordance with the provisionsof the Act and
Rule 14 of the Rules.

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives are, in any way, concerned or
interested financially or otherwise in the Resolution at item no. 4 of the Notice.

The Board of Directors recommends the Ordinary Resolution as set out at item no.4 of the Notice, for approval by
the Members.

Itam No. 5.

In terms of the provisions of Section 204 and other applicable provisions, If any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and the
Rules framed thereunder, as amended from time to time and Regulation 24A of SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 the Board at its meeting held on May 26, 2025 on the recommendation
of the Audit Committee, has approved the appointment of Mr. Rohit Verma, Company Secretaries, Company
Secretary in Practice, as Secretarial Auditors of the Company, to conduct the Secretarial Audit for a penod of 5{ﬁ"u'E}
consecutive years i e FY 2025-26 to FY 2022-30. T

Accordingly, Members are requested to confirm the appointment of Mr. Rohit Verma, Company Secretaries,
Company Secretary in Practice, as Secretarial Auditors of the Company, to conduct the Secretarial Audit for a
period of 5{five) consecutive yearsi.e FY 2025-26 to FY 202930

1

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives are, in any Wa}’,"lﬁi}ﬂtﬁi"ﬂﬂﬁ or
interested financially or otherwise in the Resolution at item no. 5.of the Notice. |

The Board of Directors recommends the Ordinary Resolution as set out at item no5of the NDtICE, for approval by
the Members.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

To the Members of
MaxVoli Energy Industries Limited

The Board presents 06% Annual Report of the Company ‘'MAXVOLT ENERGY INDUSTRIES LIMITED'
on the business and operations of the Company together with the Audited Financial Statements for
the financial year ended on March 31, 2025 (“the year under review” or “the vear” or “FY 2024-25").

The performance of the Company has been referred to whenever required.

This report is in accordance with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act”).

1. Standalone Financial Resulis:

The financial highlights are set out below: (In T Lakhs)

Particulars Standalone Standalone
Year ended ‘March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Total Revenue 10746.62 4837.15

| Other Income 181.46 4146
| Total Income 1092826 4878.61
| Less: Total Expenditure 9352.69 41844
| Profit before I_'i;?.p reciation finance Costs & tax 157557 | 694.21
; Less: Depreciation & amortization expenses 57.06 16.97
Less: Finance Costs 12588 4319

| Profit/(Loss) before tax 1392.63 634.04
Less: Provision for Tax 380.68 10993

| Add: Deferred Tax Liability 0.28 3.29
1011.68 520.83

Z. State ofthe Company's Affairs/Review of Operations

During the financial vear 2024-25, total revenue increased to ¥ 10746.62 [Amt in Lakhs) against
4837.15 (Amt in Lakhs) in the previous year, thereby registering an increase of total revenue by
122.17%. The Profit after tax (PAT) for the current year has increased to ¥1011.68 against I
520.83 Lakhs in the previous year, thereby registering an increase in Profit after tax by 94.2404.

The company is taking effective steps to improve the performance of the Company through growth
in revenue, managing costs, strategic marketing, increasing brand awareness and brand equity

through advertising campaigns etc.
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3. Dividend

In order to conserve cash and ensure liquidity for the operations, the Board of Directors decided
not to recommend any dividend to the shareholders for the Financial Year 2024-25.

4. Share Capital

During the year under review, there have been changes in the Share Capital of the Company:

* Issue of eguity shares: During the year under review, the Company made its Initial Public
Offering (IPO) of 24,00,000 equity shares of face value 10 each at an issue price of 180 per
share. The IPO was successhilly completed, and the equity shares of the Company were listed
on the SME Platform with effect from February 19, 2025, Pursuant to the IPQ, the paid-up
share capital of the Company increased to $10,20,39,280.

& Issue of Bonus shares: The Company has notissued bonus shares during the period under
review.

# Issue of employvee stock options: The Company has notissued any employee stock option
during the period under review.

* Provision of money by the company for purchase of its own shares by emplovees or
by trustees for the benefit of emplovees: The Company has not made any provision for
purchase of its own shares by employees or by trustees for the benefit of employees.

5. Reserves

During the Financial Year under review, the Board of Directors have recommended to transfer
entire amount of profit to reserves for the further expansion of the business. Hence, the amount of
profit for the financial year under review has been carried forward to the Reserve account.

6. Management Discussion and Analysis

A separate section on Management Discussion and Analysis Report ("MD&A") is included in the
Annual Report as required under Regulation 34(2) (e) of the Listing Regulations.

7. Directors

In terms with the requirements of the Listing Regulations, the Board has identified core skills,
expertise and competencies of the Directors in the context of the Company's businesses.

All the Directors have affirmed that they have complied with the Company’s Code of Conduct &
Ethics.

Further, in terms with Section 150 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) read with Rule 6 of the
Companies (Appointment and Qualifications of Directors) Rules, 2014, Independent Directors of
the Company have confirmed that they have registered themselves with the databank maintained
by the Indian Institute of Corporate Affair. The Independent Directors who were required to clear
the online proficiency self-assessment test have passed the test.
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Director’s retiring by Rotation

Shri. Bhuvneshwar Pal Singh (DIN: 07645099), Managing Director, retires by rotation and being
eligible, offers himself for re-appointment. Your directors commend his re-appointment. Brief
resume of Director being re-appointed as required by the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 and
Secretarial Standard on General Meetings are provided in the Annexure to the Notice convening
the AGM of the Company.

Declaration by Independent Directors

All Independent Directors have given declaration that they meet the criteria of independence as
laid down under Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 16{1}(b) of SEBI
(LODR) Regulations, 2015.

Company's Policy on appoiniment and remuneration of Directors

Appeintment / Cessation of Independent Directors

All Independent Directors of the Company are appointed for a term of 5 vear, i.e. Ms. Kavita Dixit
and Mr. Preet Kumar were appointed from April 10, 2024 and holds office upto April 09, 2029 and

Mr. Ajay Kumar was appointed from September 11, 2024 and hold office upto September 10, 2029.
During the period under review, Ms. Neha Yadav (DIN: 10585638), Independent Director of the
Company, resigned from the Board with effect from September 0224, 2024, due to other
professional engagements.

The Board places on record its sincere appreciation for the valuable guidance and contributions
made by Ms. Neha Yadav during their tenure as an Independent Director of the Company.

The Company has received confirmation from the said director that there were no other material
reasons for resignation other than those mentioned in the resignation letter.

Criteria for appointment of Independent Directors

The Independent Directors shall be of high integrity with relevant experience and expertise in the
fields of manufacturing, research and development, innovations, marketing, finance, taxation, law,
governance and general management, so as to have a diverse Board.

Criteria for appoiniment of Managing Directors /Whole Time Directors

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall identify persons of integrity who possess
relevant experience and expertise particularly in the Lithium battery, leadership qualities required
for the position and shall take into consideration recommendation, if any, received from any
member of the Board.

Ramuneration Policy

The Company follows a policy on remuneration for Directors and Senior Management Employees,
details of the same are given in the Corporate Governance Report.
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Board Evaluation

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing Regulations, the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee has laid down the criteria for evaluation of the performance of
Individual Director, the Board as a whole and also the Secretarial Department. Evaluation of
performance is undertaken annually.

The performance evaluation of the Chairman and the Non-Independent Directors was carried out
by the Independent Directors through which the performance of the Board as a whole was alse
evaluated and the performance of the Secretarial Department was also reviewed. The Company
has implemented a system of evaluation on the basis of a structured guestionnaire which
comprises evaluation criteria taking into consideration various performance related aspects. The
performance evaluation of the Independent Directors was carried out by the entire Board
(excluding the Director being evaluated).

The Directors expressed their satisfaction with the evaluation process.
8. Number of Board Meeting

The Board of Directors met 25 (Twenty-Five) times during the vear, the details of which are
provided in the Corporate Governance Report.

9., Commitiees of the Board

The Board has the following Committees:

1. Audit Committee

2. Nomination and Remuneration Committee
3. Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee

4. Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

1{). Directors’ Responsibility Statement:

As stipulated under Section 134({3)(c] of the Companies Act, 2013, your Directors confirm as
under:-

i} that in the preparation of the accounts for the financial year ended March 31, 2025, the
applicable accounting standards have been followed along with proper explanation relating to
material departure, if any.

ii) that the Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and
made judgmenis and estimates that were reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Company as of March 31, 2025 and of the profit of the Company for the
year under review.

iii) that the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for maintenance of adeguate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, for safeguarding
the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities.

iv) that the Directors have prepared the accounts for the financial year on going concern basis.

v) the Directors have laid down internal financial controls, which are adequate and were operating
effectively.

vi) the Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.
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11. Internal Financial Control System

Your Company has in place an adequate internal financial control system, commensurate with the
size and complexity of its operations. Necessary checks and controls are in place to ensure thatall
assets are safeguarded, to detect and prevent errors and frauds and that the transactions are
properly verified, adequately authorized, correctly recorded and properly reported. The Statutory
Auditors/Internal Auditor of the Comipany Conduct Audit of various departiments to ensure that
internal controls are in place and submit Reports to the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee
regularly reviews these Reports and the Company when needed takes corrective actions.

The Statutory Auditors also audit the effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial control
svstam. No inefficiencies were reported.

12. Human Resources

The company’'s Human Resources (HR) management practices ensure fair and reascnable
processes that are compliant with regulatory and governance requirements. The company has
developed a management framework that focuses on holistic growth of employees and aids them
with tools that help in continuously learning and the development of new skills.

As 2 growing enterprise, the company's HR policies and Industry-leading remuneration practices
aim to attract and retain top talent, thus supporting the company’s long-term strategy and driving
a sustainable performance.

Finding, retaining and developing the right talent has always been a core strategy in order to
maintain high-productivity and a value-driven organizational culture. The company finds it
imperative to follow policies and regulations that produce an unbiased and safe working
environment.

In the last fiscal year, the company focused on building systems and tolls that help track career
paths, provide guidance to develop new skills, educate employees on varied topics and recognize
and reward top performer.

13. Exiractof Annual Return

Pursuant to Section 92{3) of the Act, the Annual Return for the Financial Year ended on
3Ji=March 2025 shall be upleaded on the website of the Company and can be accessed through the
link https: /www.maxvolienergy.com.

14. Public Deposits

During the year under review, your Company has neither invited nor accepted any fixed deposits
from the public within the meaning of Section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the
Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 and there were no unclaimed deposits or interest
thereon as on March 31, 2025

15. Particulars of Loans, Guarantees and Investiments

During the year, the Company has neither provided any loan or guarantees nor invested in any
security under section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.
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16. Subsidiaries/ Joint Ventures/Associates

The Company has not Subsidiary / Jeint Ventures (JV's] and Asseciate Companies within the
meaning of Section 2(6) of the Companies Act, 2013.

17. Related Party Transactions

All related party transactions that were entered into during the financial year were in the ordinary
course of business and were on an arm's length basis. There are no materially significant related
party transactions entered into by the Company with Promoters, Directors, Key Managerial
Personnel! or other related parties which may have a potential conflict with the interest of the
Company at large.

During the year, the Company has not entered into related party transactions which could be
considered as material in accordance with the Policy on Related Party Transactions of the
Company. Accordingly, the disclosure of related party transactions as required under Section
134(3)(h) of the Companies Act, 2013 in Form AOC -2 is not applicable to your Company.

All related party transactions for the year are placed before the Audit Committee as well as before
the Board for approval. The transactions entered into with related parties are reviewed on a
guarterly basis by the Audit Committes.

The Policy on Related Party Transactions as approved by the Audit Committee and Board is
uploaded on the Companyv's website at the link:

https:/ /wwwmaxvoltenergy.com/assets/pdf/policy/policy-on-materiality-of-related-party-
transactions-el7.pdf.

18. Vigil Mechanism / Whistle Blower Policy

The Company has framed a Whistle Blower Policy to deal with instances of fraud and
mismanagement, if any., The Policy is posted en the Company's website at the link
https:/ /wwwmaxvoltenergy.com/assets/pdf/policy/vigil-mechanism-and-whistler-blower-
policy-a68.pdf.

19. Risk Management & Internal Conirol System and their Adequacy
Risk Management

In line with the regulatory requirements, the Company has framed a Risk Management Policy to
identify and assess the key business risk areas and to put in place a mechanism for mitigation of
risk. A detailed exercise is being carried out at regular intervals to identify, evaluate, manage and
monitor all business risks. The Risk Management Commititee as well as the Board periodically
reviews the risks and suggests steps to be taken to control and mitigate the same through a
properly defined framework

Internal control system & their adequacy

Internal financial controls are an integral part of the risk management process, addressing
financial and financial reporting risks. The internal financial controls have been documented and
embedded in the business processes. The Company has laid down internal financial controls,
through a combination of entity level controls, process level controls and IT general controls, inter-
alia, to ensure orderly and efficient conduct of business, including adherence to the Company's
policies and procedures, accuracy and completeness of accounting records and timely preparation

58



MANVOLT ENERCY INDUSTRIEE LIMITED Stamtry Repors

Legramed Xoeal] Bopat INI8-S Lorp oo s e e *

and reporting of reliable financial statements/information, safeguarding of assets, prevention and
detection of frauds and error.

The Company maintains appropriate systems of internal controls, including monitoring
procedures, to.ensure that all assets and investments are safeguard against less from unauthorized
use or disposition. Company policies, guidelines and procedures provide for adequate checks and
balances and are meant to ensure that all transactions are authorized, recorded and reported
correctly.

20. Significant and material orders passed by Regulators or Courts

During the period under review, the Company successfully completed its Initial Public Offering
(IPO) and was listed on the SME Platform with effect from February 19, 2025, after obtaining
requisite approvals from the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI), Stock Exchange, and
other relevant authorities.

Other than the approvals received in the ordinary course of listing, no significant or material
orders were passed by any Regulators, Courts, or Tribunals which would impact the going concern
status or future operations of the Company.

21. Material changes and commitments after the end of financial year

After the end of the financial year, there have been the following material changes and
commitments which may affect the financial position of the Company:

The Company successfully completed its Initial Public Offering [IPO) and was listed on the SME
Platform with effect from February 19, 2025. Through the IPO, the Company raised 54 Crores hy
way of fresh issue of equity shares and by wayw of offer for sale. The proceeds of the IPO are being
utilized as per the objects stated in the offer document/prospectus.

Other than the above, there have been no material changes or commitments affecting the financial
position of the Company between the end of the financial vear and the date of this report

22. Conservation of Energy, Technology absorption and foreign exchange earnings and
outgo

Information pursuant to Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 of The
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, is given in Annexure [ to this Report.

23. Corporate Social Responsibility

The brief cutline of the Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Policy of the Company and the
initiatives undertaken by the Company on CSR activities during the year are set out in Annexure -
I to this Report in the format prescribed in the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy)
Rules, 2014. The Policy is available on the Companv's wehsite at the link
https:/ /wwwmaxvoltenergy.com/assets/pdf/policy/csr-policy-444 pdf.

24, Auditors

Statutory Auditors

During the period under review, M/s. 8. Yadav & Company, Chartered Accountants (Firm
Registration No. 019841C), who has served their resignation w.e.f. October 10, 2024, due to pre-
occupation in other assignments. The Board of Directors places on record their sincere
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appreciation for the professional services rendered by M/s. S. Yadav & Company during their
tenure.

Ta fill the resultant casual vacancy, the Board of Directors, at its meeting held on Dctober 11™2024,
appeinted M/s. AT K & Associates, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. 18918C), as
the Statutory Auditors of the Company under Section 139(8) of the Companies Act, 2013, subject
to approval of the members at the ensuing General Meeting.

Subsequently, the members approved the appointment of M/s. A T K & Associates, Chartered
Accountants (Firm Registration No. 18918C) at the Extraordinary General Meeting held on
October 15%, 2024, to hold office from the date of such meeting until the conclusion of the 6th
Annual General Meeting.

M/s. AT K & Associates, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. 18215C) appointed till
the conclusion of the ensuing Annual General Meeting. Based on the recommendation of the Audit
Committee, the Board of Directors, at its meeting held on 27% of August 2025, has proposed the
re-appointment of M/s. A T K & Associates, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No.
18918C), as Statutory Auditors of the Company for a term of 5 [five] consecutive years, from the
conclusion of the ensuing 6% AGM till the conclusion of the 11%h AGM, subject to approval of the
members of the Company.

M/s. A T K & Associates, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. 18918C) have
confirmed their eligibility under Section 141 of the Companies Act, 2013 and that they are not
disqualified to be appointed as Statutory Auditors under the provisions of the said Act and rules
made thereunder.

The Statutory Audit Report for the financial vear ended March 31, 2025, issued by M/s. ATK &
Associates, Chartered Accountants [Firm Registration No. 18918C), does not contain any
gualification, reservation, or adverse remark.

Auditor

As per the provisions of Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 13 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014, the Company has appointed M/s. §. Yadav & Company, Chartered
accountants (Firm Registration No. 019841C), as the Internal Auditor of the Company for the
financial year 2025-26.

The Internal Auditor pericdically reviews the internal control systems and the operational
efficiency of the Company and submits their reports to the Board. The Board reviews the findings
and takes appropriate corrective actions wherever necessary.

The Internal Audit function ensures transparency, regulatory compliance, and strengthens the risk
management framework of the Company.

Cost Auditors

During the period under review, the Company has triggered the provisions of Section 148 of the
Companies Act, 2013, read with the Companies [Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 framed
thereunder, to appoint the Cost Auditor of the Company to conduct the audit of cost records of the
Company. The Board of Directors, en the recommendation of the Audit Committee, have appointad
M/s. PK & Associates, Cost Accountants (Firm Registration No.: 001452), as the Cost Auditor of
the Company for the Financial Year 2025-26, to conduct the audit of cost records of the Company.

In accordance with the provisions of Section 148(3) of the Act, the remuneration payable to the
Cost Auditer is required to be ratified by the members of the Company. A resclution seeking
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members’ approval for the remuneration payable to them forms part of the Notice convening the
AGM.

Further, the Cost Auditor has confirmed their independence and eligibility under Section 141 of
the Companies Act, 2013.

Secretarial Auditors

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and The Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Company had
appointed Rohit Verma, Company Secretary to undertake Secretarial Audit for the financial
year 2024-25. The Secretarial Audit Report is annexed herewith as Annexure — III. There is no
secretarial audit qualification for the year under review.

During the vear under review, the Company has complied with the applicable Secretarial
Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

The Board of Directors have appointed Rohit Verma, Company Secretary as Secretarial Auditors
of the Company to conduct Secretarial Audit for a period of 5 {five) consecutive years from the
conclusion of the 06th AGM till the 11t AGM i.e. FY 2025-26 to FY 2029-30. Resolution seeking

members’ approval forms part of the Notice convening the AGM.
25. Particulars of Emplovees

The information required pursuant to Section 197([12) of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule
5 of the Companies [Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel] Rules, 2014, is
attached as Annexure-IV. In terms of the provisions of Section 197(12) of the Act read with subrule
(2] and [3) of Rule 5 of the Companies [Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel)
Rules, 2014, a statement showing the norms and other particulars of employees drawing
remuneration in excess of the limits set out in the said Rules are provided in the Report. However,
having regard to the provisions of the first proviso to Section 136(1) of the Companies Act, 2013
the details are excluded from the Report sent to member. The required information is available for
inspection at the registered office/ corporate office and the same shall be furnished on request.

26. Change In the Nature of Business, If Any

There is no change in the nature of business of vour Company during the year under review.

27. Business Responsibility and Sustainability Report (BESR)

Regulation 34(2)(f) of the SEBEI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, mandates the Business Responsibility
and Sustainability Report {BRSR) only for top 1000 listed entities by market capitalisation. The
SME listed entities are generally outside this top 1000 threshold, and SEBI has not issued a
separate circular making Business Responsibility and Sustainability Report [BRSR) applicable to
SME Listed Entities.

28. Compliance with Secretarial standards

During the Financial Year, the Company has complied with secretarial standards issued by the
Institute of Company Secretaries of India.
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29. Corporate Governance

A report on Corpeorate Governance as stipulated in the Listing Regulations, together with
Certificate from the Auditors of the Company confirming compliance of conditions of Corporate
Governance as stipulated under the aforesaid regulations, forms part of the Annual Report.

30. Policy on sexual harassment of women at workplace

Prevention of Sexual Harassment [POSH) the Company continues to follow all the statutory
requirements and guidelines in line with the provisions of the Sexual Harassment of Women at
Workplace [Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and the Rules framed thersunder.
The POSH Committee established as per the statutory requirements, continues to operate in every
Unit and at the registered office. In case of any instances, employees are advised to approach the
internal Committee and appropriate action in this regard is initiated post detailed review of the
matter. The Company stands strong against any kind of sexual harassment and has zero tolerance
for sexual harassment at workplace.

During the year under review Company has not received complaints of sexual harassment from
any employee of the Company.

31. COMPANY STATEMENT ON COMPLIANCE WITH THE MATERNITY BENEFIT ACT, 1961

Your Company is fully committed to upholding the rights and welfare of all its employees in
accordance with applicable labor laws. In line with this commitment, we hereby affirm our
compliance with the provisions of the Maternity Benefit Act, 1961, as amended from time to time.
We ensure that all eligible women employees are granted maternity benefits as mandated under

the Act, including but not limited to:

Paid maternity leave ef up to 26 weeks {or as applicable under the law],

Additional leave in the event of illness arising out of pregnancy or delivery,

Provision of nursing breaks,

Protection from dismissal or discrimination during maternity leave,

Provision of créche facilities (where applicable, in accordance with employee strength and
workplace location]).

We remain dedicated to creating an inclusive, supportive, and legally compliant work environment
that respects and upholds the rights of women during and after pregnancy.

32. Appreciations and Acknowledgement

We thank our customers, business partners, suppliers, bankers and shareholders for their
continued support during the year. We thank the Government of India, the State Governments
where we have business operations and other government agencies for their support and look
forward to their continued supportin the future.
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Your directors are also happy to place on record their sincere appreciation to the co-operation,
commitments & contribution extended by all the employees of the "MaxVolt" Family & look
forward to enjoying their continued support & co- operation.

On behalf of the Board of Directors
MAXVOLT ENERGY INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Sd/- Sd/-
Place: New Delhi Vishal Gupta Bhuvneshwar Pal Singh
Date: 27.08.2025 Whole Time Director  Managing Director and CFO
DIN: 07842571 DIN: 07645099
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ANNEXURE -1

Details of Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption, Foreign Exchange Earnings
and Outgo required under the Companies [Accounis) Rules, 2014 -

A) CONSERVATION OF ENERGY:

i) The steps taken or impact on conservation of energy:

{a) Electrical Energy:
* Reducing the maximum demand by evenly distributing the loads throughout the day
and increasing efficiency of plant and equipment’s.
* Improving power factor by optimum choice of power factor improvement capacitor.

* Monitoring the overall energy consumption by reducing losses and improvement of
efficiency of all Class A utilities,

{b) Fuel 0il Consumption:
¢ The Company is carrying out at all its plants regular maintenance of steam lines/steam
traps and user equipment to ensure high efficiency levels throughout the year. The new
improvements are reviewed regularly and implemented wherever found suitable.

B) Technelogy Absorption:
i} Efforts made in technology absorption:

¢ The Company has an in-house Research and Development Department (R & D) which
carries put activities such as product and quality improvement, development of new
designs, new products, cost control and energy conservation,

¢ The Company has been developing inhouse modifications/improvements in process
technology in its various manufacturing sections which, when found suitable, are
integrated into the regular manufacturing operation.

ii) The benefits derived as a result of the above: -
* Quality improvement
# Energy Conservation

o The R & D activities have resulted into development of new designs and products.

iii) In case of imported techneology (imported during the last 3 years reckoned from the
beginning of the financial year): Not Applicable.

iv) Expenditure incurred on R & D: - (In T Lakhs)
* Capital-41.21
® Recurring — NIL

C) Foreign Exchange Earnings and Ouigo: (in T Lakhs)
# Foreign Exchange Used - 3669.41
* Foreign Exchange Earned - 139.48
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ANNEXURE - 11

ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY{CSR)
ACTIVITIES FOR FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH 2025,
[Pursuant to clause [o) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Act and Companies
{Corporate Social Responsibility) Rules, 2021]

1. Briefoutline on CSR Policy of the Company

The CSR Policy of the Company was approved by the Board of Directors at its Meeting held on
October 16, 2024. A gist of the Policy, the projects and programs that the Company can undertake
under the CSR Policy is mentioned below: -

We at MaxVolt have a vision to become an active partner in the Seocial Development of the
Community and to protect and maintain the environment to ensure that the Next Generation gets
sufficient education opportunities, proper healthcare facilities and to enjoy a clean and green
environment. To meet its vision MaxVolt will carry out CSR Activity as under: -

Promotion of education to the needy children.

Promoting healthcare including preventive healthcare.

To improve Sanitation and develop Infrastructure facilities.
To reduce Social and Economic Inequalities.

To protect our environment.

Any other activity as enumerated in Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013 as amended
from time to time and approved by the CSR Committes.

2. Compaosition of CSR Commitiee

Name of Director Designation/ Number of | Number of
Nature of | meetings meetings
Directorship of CSR. Committee | of CSR Committee
held during the | attended during
year ' the year
Shri. Vishal Gupta Whole time 1 1
Directer
Shr1i  Bhuvneshwar | CFO Cum |1 1
Pal Singh Managing Director
Shri Prest Kumar Independeant 1 1
Diractor

3. Provide the web-link where Composition of CSR Committee, CSR Policy and (SR projects
approved by the board are disclosed on the website of the company:
https:/ /www.maxvoltenergy.com fassets/pdf/policy/csr-policy-444.pdf

4. Provide the details of Impact assessment of CSR projecis carried out in pursuance of sub-
rule (3) of rule B of the Companies [Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if
applicable [attach the report).: NA
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Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the

i

Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for

set off for the financial year, ifany: NA

Financial Year Amount available for set- Amount required to be
off from preceding financial | set- off for the financial
years (in X Lakhs) vear, if any (in X Lakhs)

NA

6. Averagenetprofit of the company as per section 135(5).: $224.58718 lakhs

7. (a) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5): < 4.49174 Lakhs
(b) Surplus arising out of the C5R projects or programs or activities of the previous financial
vears: Not Applicable
(c) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any: NIL
(d] Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7b- 7c): $4.49174 Lakhs

8. a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial vear:

¥ 4.49174 Lakhs spent for the Financial Year ended 31 March 2025 and nothing is unspent for the
Financial Year ended 31st March, 2025.

Total Amount Unspent (% in Lakhs) : ¥ NIL

Amount

‘Spent for the | Total Amount transferred to Unspent Amount transferred to any

Financial Account as per section 135(6) fund specified under

Year (in < Schedule VII as per second

Lakhs) provise to section 135(5)
Amount Date of  Nameofthe | Amount Date of transfer

transfer Fund
449174 NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year:

Name of the | ltem Local | Location |Amount | Mode of Mode of

Project from the | area of the spent implementati | implement
list of  (Yes/ | Project |for the | on-Direct ation
activities | Ne). project | (Yes/No). Through
in (in : 4 Implement
schedule Lakhs) ting
VIl to the agency
Act.

' Eradicating (i) Yes Delhi- 450 No Through
Hunger, NCR agency
Poverty, and having Reg.

| malnutrition
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promoting No.:
health care CSRO006
including 5147
preventive

health care in

Delhi-NCR &
distribution of
portable solar

lights

(c] Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: Nil

(d) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: NA.

(e) Total amount spent for the Financial Year (Bb+8¢c+8d): ¥4.50 Lakhs
{f) Excess amount for set off, if any:

Sl. No. Particular Amount (% In Lakhs)
(i) Two percent of average net profit of the company as 4.49174 Lakhs
per section 135(5)
(ii) Total amount spent for the Financial Year 4.50 Lakhs
(iii) Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i]] 0.00826 lakhs
(iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or | NIL

programmes or activities of the previous financial
years, if any

{v) Amount available for set off in succeeding financial | NIL
years [(iii)-(iv]]

9. Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years: NA

10.In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset

so created or acquired through CSR spent in the financial year:
(a) Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset{s): NOT APPLICABLE
(b) Amount of C5R spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset: NOT APPLICABLE

(c) Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such capital asset
is registered, their address etc.: NOT APPLICABLE

(d) Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (including complete address and
location of the capital asset): NOT APPLICABLE
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11.Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net
profit as per Section 135[5) : NA

For and on behalf of the Beard of Directors
MaxVolt Energy Industries Limited

Sd/-
Bhuvneshwar Pal Singh
Managing Director and CFO
DIN: 07645099
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ANNEXURE- III

FORM NO. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 2025
[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.2 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

MaxVolt Energy Industries Limited
F-108, Plot No. 1 F/F United Plaza,
Community Centre, Karkardooma,
New Delhi - 110092,

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutery provisiens and
the adherence to good corporate practices by MaxVolt Energy Industries Limited (hereinafter
called "the Company"). Secretarial Audit was conducted in 3 manner that provided us a
reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our
opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company's papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other
records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its
officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of Secretarial Audit, we herehy
report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial vear
ended on March 31, 2025 complied with the statutory provisions of the applicable Acts listed
hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance mechanism in
place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the papers, minute books, forms and returns filed, and other records
maintained by the company for the financial vear ended on March 31, 2025 according to the
provisions of:

i. The Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and the rules made thersunder;

ii. The Securities Contracts [Regulation]) Act, 1956 ['SCRA") and the rules made thereunder;

ili. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Depositories and Participants) Regulations, 2018
and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

iv.Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the
extent ef Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial
Borrowings;

v. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board
of India Act, 1992 ["SEBI Act”) viz:-

a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers)
Regulations, 2011.

b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India [Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015.

¢] The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015.

69



MANVOLT ENERCY INDUSTRIEE LIMITED SEimmry Report

e — s )

d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an [ssue and Share Transfer Agents)
Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act, 2013 and dealing with client.

e)] The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buy- Back of Securities] Regulations, 2018 [Not
applicable during the period of audit].

f] The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements] Regulations, 2018; During the year under review, the Company has
successfully completed its Initial Public Offer (IPO) in accordance with the provisions of the
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2018 ("SEBI ICDR Regulations").

Pursuant to the approval of the Board of Directors and the shareholders of the Company, the
Company made a public issue of 24,00,000 equity shares and 6,00,000 equity shares by offer
for sale of face value of T 10/ - each at a price of T 180/ - per equity share (including a premium
of T 170/- aggregating to T 54 crore.

The issue opened for subscription on February 12® 2025 and closed on February 14® 2025.
The issue was oversubscribed by 3.23 times, reflecting strong investor confidence in the
Company’s business and growth prospects.

The equity shares of the Company were listed on SME Platform on February 19, 2025. Pursuant
to the listing, the Company has complied with all the applicable provisions of the SEBI ICDR
Regulations, 2018, the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015, and other applicable laws.

The IPO proceeds have been/will be utilized for the objects stated in the offer document. The
Audit Committee periodically reviews the utilization of funds and confirms that the same is in
line with the stated objects.

g] The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity)
Regulations, 2021 [Not applicable during the period of audit].

h) Securities and Exchange Beoard of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities)
Regulations, 2021 [Not applicable to the company during the review period);

i} The Securities and Exchange Board of India [Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021;
[Not applicable during the period of andit].

vi.We have relied on the representation made by the Company and its Officers for systems and
mechanisms formed by the Company for compliances under other applicable Acts, Laws and
Regulations which are mentioned as under:

a) The Factories Act, 1948 and Rules made thereunder;

b) The Industries (Development and Regulation) Act, 1951;

¢} Labour laws and other incidental laws related to labour and employees appointed by the
Company;

d) Acts and Rules prescribed under prevention and control of pollution;

e) Acts and Rules relating to environmental protection, energy conservation and hazardous
substances and chemicals;

f] Acts and Rules relating to boilers, electricity explosives, fire, etc,;
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g) Acts as prescribed under Direct and Indirect Tax and Goods and Service Tax;

h] The Trade Marks Act, 1992 and The Copy Right Act, 1957;

i} The Legal Metrology Act, 2009;

i) Acts as prescribed under Shops and Establishment Act of various local authorities,

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

a) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India;

b) The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with National Stock Exchange of India
Limited read with the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Reguirements]) Regulations, 2015.

During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act,
Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above.

We further report that - The Board of Directors of the Company is dulv constituted with proper
balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Director. During the
period under review, the following changes have been occurred in the composition of the board
of directors:

1. Ms. Kavita Dixit, Mr. Preet Kumar and Ms. Neha Yadav appointed as an Independent
Directors of the Company on April 102, 2024,
Ms. Rajni appointed as a Company Secretary of the Company on September 02, 2024.

[

Mr. Bhuvneshwar Pal Singh appointed asa Managing Director cum Chief Financial Officer
(CFO) of the Company on September 11, 2024.

4, Mr. Vishal Gupta appointed as a Whele Time Director of the Company on September
11, 2024.

5. Ms. Neha Yadav has resignad as an Independent Director on September 0274, 2024,

6. Mr. Ajay Kumar hasappointed as Independent Director of the Company on September 11,
2024,

Adequate notice is given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings, Board Committee
Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent well in advance and a system exists
for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the
meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting. As per the minutes of the meetings
duly recorded and signed by the Chairman, the decisions ef the Board were unanimous, and no
dissenting views have been recorded.

We further report that based on the information provided and the representation made by the
Chief Financial Officer / Company Secretary and taken on record by the Board of Directors of
the Comipany, in our opinion there are adequate systems and processes in the Company
commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance
with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

As informed, the Company has responded appropriately to notices received from various
statutory/regulatory authorities including initiating actions for corrective measures, wherever
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found necessary.

During the year under review, the Company has successfully completed its Initial Public Offer
(IPO) and its equity shares were listed on SME platform with effect from February 19%® 2025.
The Company has complied with the provisions of the Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018 and other applicable laws
and regulations in this regard, to the extent applicable,

We further report that pursuant te the [PQ, the Company has also complied with post-listing
requirements as prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India [Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Reguirements) Regulations, 2015. The Company has raised an
amount of 54 Crores through the IPO, consisting of 24,00,000 fresh issue of equity shares and
6,00,000 Eguity Shares in offer for sale by existing shareholders. Necessary approvals of the
Board, Shareholders, SEBI, Stock Exchanges, and ROC were obtained as required

Rohit Verma & Associates

Sd/-
Rohit Verma
M.No.: A-34764
COP: 20729
UDIN: A 034764G001076640
PEER REVIEW CERTIFICATE NO.: 6153 /2024

Note: This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure [ and

forms an integral part of this report
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Annexure [ to Secretarial Audit Report

Tao,

The Members,

MaxVolt Energy Industries Limited
F-108, Plot No. 1 F/F United Plaza,
Community Centre, Karkardooma,
New Delhi- 110092,

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter:

1. Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of management of the Company. Qur
responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was
done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that
the processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. We have not verified the financial records and books of accounts of the Company.

4. Wherever required, we have obtained the Management Representation about the compliance of

laws, rules and regulations and happening of events, etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules and regulations,
standards is the responsibility of the management. Qur examination was limited to the verification

of procedures on test basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company
nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the

Company.
Rohit Verma & Associates
Sd/-

Rohit Verma

M.No.: A-34764

COP: 20729

UDIN: AG34764G001076640

PEER REVIEW CERTIFICATE NO.: 6153 /2024
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ANNEXURE- IV
DISCLOSURE OF MANAGERIAL REMUNERATION

The percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, Chief Financial Officer and Company
Secretary during the financial year 2024- 25 ratio of the remuneration of each Director to the
median remuneration of the employee of the Company for the financial year 2024-25 and
comparison of remuneration of each key managerial personnel (KMP) against the performance of
the Company is as under :-

Sr. | Name of | Designati Remunerati | % Increase | Ratio of Compariso
N the on on of | in Remunerati | n of the
0. | Director Directors Remunerati | on of each remunera
/ KMP for on in the | Director/ tion of the
Financial Financial to median KMP
Year Year 2024- | remunerati | against the
2024-25 25 on of | performan
(% in Lakhs) employees ce of the
' 2024-25 Company
1 Mr. Managing 2134 438.01% 2841 Remunerati
Bhuwvnesh Director on of KMP
war Pal was
Singh increased
|2 | Mr. Vishal | Whole- 20.14 39.920% 26.85 by 43.96%.
Gupta time Total
Director Revenue
increased
by 122.17%
and Profit
after tax
increased
bv94.24%

i} The median remuneration of employees of the Company during the financial year was 0.75
Lakhs.

ii) In the financial year, there was an increase of 46.38 U5 in the median remuneration of the
emplovee.

iii) There were 120 permanent employees on the rolls of the Company as on March 31, 2025.

iv) Relationship between average increase in remuneration and Company performance:
Total Revenue increased by 122.17%, Profit after Tax increased by 94.249 for the financial year
March 31, 2025 whereas average increase in median remuneration was in line with the
performance of the Company.

v) Total Remuneration of Key Managerial Personnel was increased by around 43.96% in F.Y. 2024~
25, whereas total Revenue increased by 122.17% Profit after tax increased by 94.2494.

a. Variation in Market Capitalisation of the Company: The market Capitalisation as on March 31,
2025 was 182.477 Crore.

b. Price earnings ratio of the Company was 14.32 as of March 31, 2025.

c. The Company has made its Initial public offer {IPO) during the financial yvear 2024-25 and
accordingly, comparison of public offer price and the current market price of the Company's shares
will be relevant.
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* Public offer price;: T 172-180
® Market Price ason 31=March 2025: X 167.35

vi} Average percentage increase made in the salaries of employees other than managerial
personnel in the last financial vear was 45.649%6 whereas increase in managerial remuneration for
the same financial year was 43.96 U4.

vii) The key parameters for the variable component of remuneration availed by the directors are
considered by the Board of Directors based on the recommendation for the Nomination and
Remuneration commitiee as per the Remuneration Policy for Directors, Key Managerial Personnel
and other Employees.

viii} The ratio of the remuneration of the highest paid director to that of the employees who are
not directors but receive remuneration in excess of the highest paid director during the vear not
applicable and

ix) It is hereby affirmed that the remuneration paid is as per the Remuneration Policy for Directors,
Key Managerial Personnel and other Employees.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
MaxVolt Energy Industries Limited

Sd/-
Bhuvneshwar Pal Singh
Managing Director and CFO
DIN: 07645099
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Corporate Governance Report
|As required under the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 ("SEBI [LODR]) Regulations, Z015"/ “the Listing Regulations”]]

1. Company's Philosophy

MaxVolt's philosophy on corporate governance is to attain the highest level of transparency,
accountability and equity in all facets of its operations with the objective to enhance the long-term
sharsholders’ value, while at the same time protect the interest of other stakeholder. The Company
believes that proper Corporate Governance facilitates effective management and control of
business, The Company recognizes that good Corporate Governance is a continuing exercise and is
committed to follow the best practices in the overall interest of its stakehaolder.

The Company endeavors to adopt best practices of Corporate Governance and adherence of the
same in a spirit which goes beyond mere regulatory compliance. The Company has a strong legacy
of fair, transparent and ethical governance practices.

2. Board of Directors
Composition:

The Board of Directors of the Company has an optimum combination of Executive, Non-Executive
and Independent Director. As on March 31, 2025, the Board comprises of 5 (five) Directors, out of
which 2(five) are Executive and 3(three) are Non-Executive and Independent Director.

The names and categories of the Directors.on the Board, their attendance at Board Meetings during
the year and at the last Annual General Meeting held on September 30, 2024, as also the number
of Directorships held in other public companies and Committee Chairmanship/ Memberships held
by them in all listed companies as on March 31, 2025 are given below:

Name of the Category of | Attendance Directorship | Committee position
Director public
Camanies
Board Last - Chairman | Member
AGM
Mr. Managing 25/25 | Yes - - 2
Bhuwvneshwar Director
'__Eal Sing‘qm_r -
Mr. Vishal | Whole-time 25/25 Yes 2 1 1
Gupta Director
Mr. Preet | Independent 23/25 Yes 1 1 3
Kumar Director |
Mr. Ajay | Independent | 4/25 No - 1 i
Kumar Director
Ms. Kavita | Independent | 10/25 Yes = 1 1
Dixit | Director
Notes:

1. None of the Directors are related to each other.
2. None of the Non- Executive / Independent Directors hold any shares of the Company.
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Details of Directorship of the Directors of the Company:
Sr. | Name of the Director Name of other Listed Entities | Category of
Ne. in which Directorship held Directorship
1. Mr. Preet Kumar Sona Machinery Limited Independent
Director
2. Mr. Bhuvneshwar Pal |- -
Singh
3. Mr. Vishal Gupta = =
4. Ms. Kavita Dixit - -
5. | Mr. Ajay Kumar = -

List of Core Skills/Expertise /Competencies of the Directors of the Company:

Sr. Core Skills/Expertise/Competencies of | Name of Director possessing the
No. | the Directors of the Company Skills/Expertise /
Competencies

1 Accounting and Financial Management Both Directors
2 Direct and Indirect Taxation Bhuvneshwar Pal Singh
3 Capital and Financial Market Bhuvneshwar Pal Singh
4 Lithium Batteries, Production, Marketing Vishal Gupta

. and Selling Knowledge
5 Knowledge of International Markets Vishal Gupta

6 Products Research and Devefnpment ;v’?s_hzlu_[}upta
7 Supply Chain Management Vishal Gupta
B Project Implementation Vishal Gupta

Independent Directors:

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 149 of the Act and Regulation 16(1)(b) of SEBI (LODR)
Regulations, 2015, Mr. Ajay Kumar, Ms. Kavita Dixit and Mr. Preet Kumar are Independent
Directors of the Company. They have submitted a declaration that each of them meets the criteria
of independence, which was considered and taken on record by the Board of Directors of the
Company. The Board confirms that in its opinion all the Independent Directors of the Company
fulfil the conditions of independence as specified in Section 149 of the Act and Regulation 16[1)(b)
of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 and are independent of the Management.

Board Meetings:

During the year, 25 (Twenty-Five)] Board Meetings were held. The details of the same is mentioned

as below:
S.No. Date of Meeting Type of the Meeting (BM/EGM)
1. 01= April, 2024 Board Meeting
2 | 08% April, 2024 Board Meeting
3, 237 April, 2024 Board Meeting
4, 034 May, 2024 ' Board Meeting
5 24t May, 2024 Board Meeting
6. 25% May, 2024 Board Meeting
[ 7. '-_El_[igﬁad_jr:fﬂuf@ ' Board Meeﬁng
8. | 06%]une, 2024 Board Meeting
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9, 14% June, 2024 Board Meeting
10 ‘ 26% June, 2024 Board Meeting
11. | 02" September, 2024 Board Meeting
12. | 28% September, 2024 Board Mesting
13. 03 Qctober, 2024 Board Meeting
14, 11t% October, 2024 Board Meeting
15. 16% October, 2024 | Board Meeting
16. | 26®™ October, 2024 Board Meeting
17. 07% November, 2024 Board Meeting
18. 08% November, 2024 Board Meeting
19, 09% November, 2024 Board Meeting
20. 11® November, 2024 Board Meeting
21, ' 26% December, 2024 ‘Board Meeting
22. 06% February, 2025 Board Meeting
23, 11™ February, 2025 _ | Board Meeting
24, 17% of February, 2025 Board Mesting
25, 215 of February, 2025 Board Meeting
Extra- nﬁﬁﬁﬁgﬁerﬂ Meeting (FY 2024-25):
1 | 099 April, 2024 Extra-ordinary General Meeting ([EGM)
2 10% April, 2024  Extra-ordinary General Meeting (EGM)
3. 28%} May, 2024 | Extra- nrdmary General Meeting [Eéiﬂ!]
4, 29™ May, 2024 Extra-ordinary General Meeting (EGM)
5 18% June, 2024 Extra-ordinary General Meeting (EGM)
6 11 September, 2024 Extra-ordinary General Meetr'.;g [EGM]
7 15% October, 2024 Extra-ordinary General Meeting (EGM)

Attendance of the Board Meeting:

Name of the | DIN Designation No. of Board No. of Board

Director meeting held | meeting

Vishal Gupta 07842571 Whole-time 25 25
director

Bhuvneshwar 07645099 Managing 25 25

Pal Singh Director

Ajay Kumar 10758422 Independent 25 4
Director

Preet Kumar 10371737 Independent 25 23
Director

Kavita Dixit 10584521 Independent 25 10
Director

Board procedures:

The agenda is circulated well in advance to the Board member. The items in the agenda are backed
by comprehensive background information to enable the Board to take appropriate decisions. In
addition to the information required under Schedule Il Part A of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015,
the Board is also kept informed of major events/items and approvals taken wherever necessary.
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The Managing Director(s)/Executive Director(s), at the Board Meetings, keeps the Board apprised of
the overall performance of the Company.

3. Audit Committees
Terms of Reference:

The scope of activities of the Audit Committee is as set out in Schedule IT Part C of SEBI (LODR)

Regulations, 2015 [as amended from time to time) read with Section 177 of the Act. These broadly
include review of reports of the Internal Auditors and to discuss the same with them periodically, to
meet Statutory Auditors to discuss their findings/ suggestions, to review weaknesses in internal
controls reported by Internal and Statutory Auditors, to review financial reporting systems and
internal contrel systems, to review quarterly fhalf vearly/annual financial results and other matter.

Audit Committee Composition:

The Audit Committee consists of 2{two] Independent Directors and 1[one) Executive Director
having requisite knowledge of Finance, Accounis and Company Law. The composition of the Audit
Committee meets with the requirements of Section 177 of the Act and Regulation 18{1) of SEBI
(LODR] Regulations, 2015.

Audit Committee Meetings:

i {s]

The Company has constituted the Audit Committee on dated October 16, 2024, the Committee has
met once (1) on November 08, 2024 during the financial year.

Name of the Committee with their attendance is given below:

Name of the Member Designation in Committee No. of meeting attended
Mr. Bhuvneshwar Pal Singh ) 1
@
Mr. Ajay Kumar .= 1
Mr. Preet Kumar = 1
(]
® B .
f) Member —  Chairman

4. Nomination and Remuneration Committee:
Terms of Reference:

Terms of reference of the Committes, includes considering the matters relating to the Company's

Policies on remuneration payable and determining the package to the Managing Directors; Executive
Directors and Whole-time Directors, commission to be paid to the Directors and other matters
specified in Section 178 of the Act and as set outin Part D of Schedule II of SEBI (LODR] Regulations,
2015 {as amended from time to time).

Nomination and Remuneration Committee Composition:

The Committee consists wholly of Non-Executive and Independent Director. The Chairman of the
Committee is an Independent Director.
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------

The Company has constituted the Nomination & Remuneration Committee on dated October 16,
2024, the Committee has met once (1) on November 08, 2024 during the financial year.,

Name of the Committes Members along with their attendance is given below:

Name of the Member Designation in Committee  No. of meetings attended
Mr. Preet Kumar 9 1
. oY &
Ms. Kavita Dixit =Y 1
Mr. Ajay Kumar ° 1
]2y o

£} Member % Chairman

Remuneration Policy:

The Company follows a policy on remuneration of Directors and Senior Management Employees as
enumerated below:

Fn)
a

lemuneration of Mon-Executive Directors:

The Non-Executive Directors shall be entitled to receive remuneration by way of sitting fees,
reimbursement of expenses for participation in the Board/ Committee meetings and commission
as approved by the Board within the limits previously approved by the member.

Remuneration of Managing Directors/ Whele Time Directors:

1. The remuneration to Managing Director(s)/ Whole Time Director(s), shall be as mutually agreed
between the Company (which includes the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the
Board of Directors) and the Managing Director(s)/ Whole Time Director(s) within the overall
limits prescribed under the Act and in compliance with the Listing Regulations.

2. The remuneration shall be as approved by/subject to the approval of the Members of the
Company in General Meeting.
3. The remuneration of the Managing Director(s) & CEQ/Whole Time Director(s) is broadly

divided into salary, allowances, perquisites, amenities, retirement benefits and commission
(subject to availability of profits).

4. In determining the remuneration the Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall
ensure/consider the following :-
* The relationship of remuneration and performance benchmark is clear.

* Responsibility required to be shouldered by the Managing Director(s)/ Whole Time Director(s),
the industry benchmarks and the current trends.

* The Company's performance vis-a'-vis the annual budget achievement and individual
performance vis-a'-vis the KRAs/KPIs.
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Remuneration of Senicr Management Employees:

1. In determining the remuneration of the Senior Management employees i.e. KMPs, the

Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall ensure/ consider the following:

* The relationship of remuneration and performance benchmark is clear.

*® The remuneration including annual increment is decided based on the criticality of the roles and
responsibilities, the Company’s performance visa- vis the annual budget achievement, individual
performance vis-a-vis KRAs/ KPIs industry benchmark and current compensation trends in the
market.

Details of Directors’ Remuneration® for the year 2024-25 is given below: - (Amt ¥ in Lakhs)

Name of | Salary & other | Sitting Fees Commission Total
Directors perquisites ' Remuneration
Mr. 21.10 = - 21.10
Bhuvneshwar
Pal Singh
Mr. Vishal | 1993 - - 19.93
Gupta

| Mr. Ajay Kumar | - 0.12 - 0.12
Mr. Prest | - 1.14 - 1.14
Kumar
Ms. Kavita Dixit | - 0.60 - 0.60

*Remuneration includes Salary, Allowance, Commission, Perquisites, Company’s contribution to Provident
Fund, Superannuation Fund, Gratuity Fund and Leave Salary.

Pecuniary relationship or transaction

There were no other pecuniary relations or transactions of Non-Executive Directors vis-a-vis the
Company. The Company has not granted any stock eption to any of its Non-Executive Directors or
Executive Director.

Service Contract, Notice Period and Severance Fees

The Managing Director(s)/Executive Director(s)/Whole-Time Director(s) are generally appointed for a
period of 5(five) wears with a notice period of 3[three] months from either party for resigning/
terminating the services. No severance fee has been paid or payable by the Company.

5. Stakeholders Relationship Committes
Terms of Reference:

The Stakeholders Relationship Committee deals with all matters relating to Stakeholders/Investors
Grievance and its redressal, to review the measures taken for effective exercise of voting rights by
shareholders; to review adherence to the service standards adopted by the Company in respect of
various services being rendered by the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent and to review the various
measures and initiatives taken by the Company for reducing the quantum of unclaimed dividends and
ensuring timely receipt of dividend warrants/ annual reports/ statutory notices by the shareholders of
the Company.
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Stakeholders Relationship Commitiee Meetings:

The Company has constituted the Stakeholders Relationship Committee on dated October 16, 2024, the
Committee has metonce (1) on November 08, 2024 during the financial year.

Name of the Committee Members along with their attendance is given below:-

Name of the Member Designation in Committee  No. of meetings attended
Ms. Kavita Dixit 8. 1
Mr. Vishal Gupta » 1
@
Mr. Preet Kumar ® 1
=
<5 .
‘ Member ~—  Chairman

Stakeholders Grievance Redressal

During the year ended March 31, 2025, No Complaints were received. For effective and
efficient grievance management, the Company has dedicated E-mail ID:
investorrelations@maxvoltenergy.com. The Company Secretary, Ms. Rajni, has been
designated as Compliance Officer.

6. Corporate Social Responsibility Committes

Terms of Reference:
The Committee is formed with the object: -

* To frame and review the CSR Policy and to indicate the activities to be undertaken by the
Company as specified in Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013.
* To implement and monitor the CSR activities undertaken by the Company.

CSR Committee Composition, Meetings held and Attendance:

Composition: The CSR Committee is comprised of 3(three) directors including 1(one)
Independent Director.

Meetings: The Company has constituted the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee on

dated October 16, 2024, the Committee has met ence (1) on November 08, 2024
during the financial year.

Nameofthe Committee Membersalongwiththeirattendance is givenbelow

Name of the Member Designation in Committee  No. of meetings attended
Mr. Bhuvneshwar Pal Singh = 1
]
Mr. Vishal Gupta - 1
Mr. Prest Kumar @ 1
=
® o B .
§) Member _;.!._.. Chairman
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7. General Shareholder Information

Annual General Meeting : Friday, September 26, 202512:00 P.M Through Video

Day /Date, Time, Mode Conferencing{"VC"/Other Audio Visual Means("OAVM").

Financial Calendar April 1, 2024 to March 31, 2025

[Tentative)

Dt G Bl Closiis Saturday, Eeptem?ier 2[]., 2025 to Friday, September 26,
2025 (both days inclusive)

BRRdRd The Cr:lmpanv has not declared any dividend for the
financial year 2024-25.

Listing of Equity Shares on Mational Stock Exchange of India Ltd,

Exchange Plaza, C-1, Block G,

the Stock Exchanges Bandra-Kurla Complex, Bandra (East), Mumbai 400 051

8. Stock Code/Symbol

a) Stock Exchange Stock Code/ Symbol : MAXVOLT
National Stock Exchange of India Lid.
b) Demat ISIN Number in NSDL & CDSL

for Equity Shares INE10AS01018
9. Stock Market Price Data
Month National Stock Exchange (NSE)
Feb-2025 18205 (16310
mMar—Eﬂ%S 1'}'? 20 | ]__:1-5_9_5

10. Registrar and Transfer Agents
Name & Address:

Bigshare Services Private Limited
Registered Office: S6-2, 6th Floor,
Pinnacle Business Park, Mahakali
Caves Rd, Andheri East, Mumbai -
400093

SEBI Registration No.: INRO0O0001385
Telephone No.: (022) 62638299 E-
mail: info@bigshareonline.com
Website: www.bigshareonline.com
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11.Sharehelding pattern as on 31st March, 2025

Sr.Ne. | Category Numberof Sharesheld | Percentage of

Shareholding

1 Promoters 4,267,396 39,14
2 Foreign Portfolio Investors 168,000 1.54
3 | Any Other(CLEARING MEMBER) 150,400 1.38
4 | NBFCs registered with RBI 70,400 0.65
5 | Private Corporate Bodies 368,700 3.38
& Alternate Investment Funds/Trust 639,200 5.86
7 MNon-Residents Individuals 44,000 040

8 Indian Public 5,048,632 46.30
g Hindu Undivided Family (HUF) 147,200 135
| Grand Total 10,903,928 100

12. Plant Locations:
E 82 Bulandshahar Road Industrial Area 1 Ghaziabad Uttar Pradesh 201009,
Ghaziabad City, Ghaziabad, Ghaziabad, Uttar Pradesh, India, 201009.

13. Address for Correspondence

MAXVOLT ENERGY INDUSTRIES

Registered Office Corporate Office Registrar &
Share
Transfer Agent

F-108, Plot No. 1 F/F United E 82 Bulandshahar Road S6-2, oth Floor,
Plaza, Community Centre, Industrial Area 1 Ghaziabad | Pinnacle Business Park,
Karkardooma, New Delhi - | Uttar Pradesh, India, | Mahakali Caves Rd,
110092 201009 Andheri  East,
Mumbai - 400093

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

MaxVolt Energy Industries Limited

Sd/-
Bhuvneshwar Pal Singh
Managing Directorand CFO
DIN: 07645099
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Annexure— A
Declaration
I, Bhuvneshwar Pal Singh, Managing Director hereby declare that all the Members of the Board and
the Senior Management have affirmed compliance with the Code of Conduct for the yvear ended
March 31, 2025.

For MAXVOLT ENERGY INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Sd/-
Bhuvneshwar Pal Singh
Managing Director and CFO
DIN: 07645099

Date: 30.08.2025
Place: New Delhi

CERTIFICATION BY MANAGING DIRECTOR AND CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER TO THE
BOARD

We, the undersigned certify that:

(a) We have reviewed financial statements and cash flow statement for the vear and that to the
best of our knowledge and belief:
* these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact
or contain statements that might be misleading;
¢ these statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of Company and of the
results of operations and cash flows. The financial statements have been prepared in
conformity, in all material respects, with the existing generally accepted accounting
principles including Accounting Standards, applicable laws and regulations.

(b) There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company
during the vear which are fraudulent, illegal or viclative of the Company’'s code of conduct.

(c} We accept overall responsibility for the Company's internal control system for financial
reporting. This is monitored by the internal audit function, which encompasses the examination
and evaluation of the adequacy and effectiveness. Internal audit works with all levels of
management and statutory auditors, and report significant issues to the Audit Committee of the
Board. The auditors and audit commmittee are apprised of anv corrective action taken with regard
to significant deficiencies and material weaknesses.

(d) We indicate to the Auditors and to the Audit Committee:
e significant changes in internal control over financial reperting during the year;

¢ significant changes in accounting policies during the year and that the same have been
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements;

85



MANVOLT ENERCY INDUSTRIEE LIMITED Statmimry Repore

T = = [T

* instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware of and which involve
management or other emplovees who have a significant role in the Company’s internal
control system over the financial reporting. However, during the year there were no such
changes or instances,

For MAXVOLT ENERGY INDUSTRIES LIMITED

5d/-
Bhuvneshwar Pal Singh Managing
Managing Director and CFO
DIN: 07645099

Date: 30.08.2025
Place: New Delhi
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Economic Overview

The global economy is at a critical juncture. While signs of stabilisation emerging during the year,
major policy shifts and tariff wars and geopolitical tensions reset the global trade system to testits
resilience. The International Monetary Fund (IMF) estimated the world to have grown by 3.3% in
2024, maintaining the same pace as in 2023. Resilience, services trade, and critical minerals are
some of the factors that contributed to this growth. Advanced economies witnessed a slight uptick,
with growth expected to increase from 1.6% in 2023 to 1.8% in 2024, while the emerging and
developing economies grew by 4.3%4 in 2024.

Futore Outlook

Looking ahead, intensifving downside risks dominate future outlook, amid escalating trade
tensions. Shifting policies could lead to abrupt tightening of global financial conditions and capital
outflows, particularly impacting emerging markets. Production and shipping disruptions in
emerging markets and developing economies - due to factors like conflicts, civil unrest, and
weather-related events — slowed growth prospects in regions such as the Middle East, Central Asia,
and Sub-Saharan Africa. Stronger growth in emerging Asia will be fuelled by increasing demand
for semiconductors and electronics, largely driven by investments in artificial intelligence. Lower
inflation and monetary easing in several economies may provide a modest bhoost to glebal
economic activity, with world GDP projected to grow by 2.6% in 2025 and 3.0% in 2026. Advanced
economies are forecast to maintain steady growth of 1.4% in 2025, with a slight uptick to 1.5% in
2026, while the emerging and developing economies are seen growing by 3.7% in 2025 and 3.9%4
in 2026, marking a slight slowdown from 2023, To foster a positive external environment,
strengthen macroeconomic stability, address structural barriers, tackle the imparts of climate

change, and accelerate growth and development, coordinated policy action at both global and
national levels will be crucial.

Indian Economy

India’s economy grew by 6.5% in FY 2024-25, compared with 9.2%4 growth in its GDP in FY 2023-
24, Despite potential challenges from global uncertainties, India continued to experience
consistent growth, with key domestic growth drivers being increased government spending, a
recovering job market, robust service sector growth, a healthy agricultural sector, rising capital
expenditure in infrastructure development, public infrastructure investments, and an uptick in
household spending on real estate. The manufacturing sector and resilient services have seen
growth and helped offset losses in the agriculture sector. These trends contributed to an
improvement in urban unemployment rates in the year under review.

According to the Werld Bank's India Development Update: India's Trade Opportunities in a
Changing Global Context, India's economy has been one of the fastest growing in the world, driven
by stable consumption demand and steadily improving investment demand. The nation is set to
dominate the global economic landscape, maintaining its status as the fastest-growing large
economy for the next two fiscal years.

Looking ahead, India is expected to maintain positive momentum, with a forecasted growth rate of

6.704in FY 2025-26. The country’s debt-to-GDP ratio is expected to decline from 83.9% in FY 2023-
24 to 82% by FY 2026-27. Amid challenging external conditions, India's medium-term outlock
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remains positive as it continues to benefit from continued economic expansion - particularly in
services like agriculture, services and construction, increased employment opportunities and
improved standard of living. At a time when global growth is expected to remain 2.7% in 2025-24,
India’s remarkable performance underscores its resilience and growing significance in shaping the
world's economic trajectory.

Indusiry outlook

The global lithinm-ion battery market is expanding quickly as the world shifts to clean energy and
electric mobility, In 2023, the market was worth about 54 billion dollars and is expected to cross
60 billion dollars in 2024. By 2025, it could reach around 76 billion dollars. Over the next decade,
the market is projected to grow strongly, reaching between 200 and 400 billion dollars by 2030
and more than 440 billion dollars by the mid-2030s. Most of this growth will come from electric
vehicles, while renewable energy storage, consumer electronics, and industrial uses will also
contribute. Global battery capacity demand is set to rise from about 700 gigawatt-hoursin 2022 to
nearly 4,700 gigawatt-hours by 2030.

China is the clear leader, dominating production and control of raw materials. South Korea and
Japan are strong players, known for advanced technologies and partnerships with automakers.
The United States and Europe are investing heavily to build local industries and reduce reliance on
imports. Together, these regions are shaping the future of the industry through investment,
innovation, and supportive government policies

The Indian lithium-ion battery market is expected to grow significantly due to increasing demand
for electric vehicles [EVs), renewable energy storage, and a sharp surge in the consumer
electronics market. Influenced by these developments, major EV industry players are investing in
battery manufacturing and recycling to strengthen India’s energy material reserves. The transition
to electric vehicles powered by lithium-ion batteries is underway, and the India Energy Storage
Alliance (IESA) is forecasting the market to reach $80 billion by 2030. Government initiatives like
the Faster Adoption and Manufacturing of (Hybrid &) Electric Vehicles [FAME] programme and
the Production-Linked [ncentive (PLI) Scheme for Advanced Chemistry Cell battery storage are
playving a crucial role in this futuristic change.

Support from the Government

The government has introduced several initiatives to support the industry’s growth. The Make in
India Imitiative is a cornerstone of the Indian government’s efforts to promote domestic
manufacturing, including the batterv industry. This campaign aims to reduce reliance on imports
by encouraging Indian manufacturers to produce high-quality batteries locally, thereby fostering
self-reliance. A significant focus is placed on innovation, with an emphasis on research and
development to create cost-effective and sustainable hattery solutions that cater to both domestic
and global markets.

Complementing this is the Production Linked Incentive (PLI) Scheme, a transformative policy
for the cell manufacturing sector. Its primary objective is to establish a robust manufacturing base
for advanced batteries, prioritizing technological advancements and enhancing market
competitiveness. With a substantial budget allocation of 18,100 crore, the scheme offers financial
incentives tied to production milestones, enabling manufacturers to achieve economies of scale
and boosting overall industry growth.

The Battery Swapping Policy adds another layer of innovation by addressing cost and
convenience challenges for EV users. This policy emphasizes the standardization and
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interoperability of battery swapping systems, creating a seamless experience for consumers while
opening up new opportunities for manufacturers. By encouraging the production of swappable
and efficient battery systems, it reduces the financial burden of battery ownership and promotes
wider EV adoption.

Lastly, the government's Focus on EV Ecosystem is underscored by the FAME India
Scheme (Faster Adoption and Manufacturing of Hybrid and Electric Vehicles). This initiative has
played a pivotal role in accelerating the adoption of EVs in India by offering incentives that create
consistent demand for high-qualityv bhatteries. Together, these initiatives highlight the
government's comprehensive strategy to support and advance the Indian battery manufacturing
industry, driving innovation, sustainability, and economic growth.

Key Opportunities and Challenges
Opportunities:

The growth and popularity of electric vehicles (EV] is putting a spotlight on Lithium-ion batteries.
According to Bloomberg 2019 Electric Vehicle Outlook, EVs, including commercial and passenger,
will dominate the demand of the Lithium-ion battery market in the next ten years. Lithium-ion
batteries provide lightweight, efficient power for EVs and consumer electronics. Compared to
nickel-metal hydride (NiMH) batteries, lithium-ion batteries have a 50 percent greater capacity in
watt-hours per kilogram (w-h/kg].

Challenges:

A challenge with this growing market is the limited access to mineral resources key for
manufacturing lithium-ion batteries. The key minerals making up the cathode material, including
Lithium {Li}, Manganese (Mn), Nickel [Ni), and Cobalt (Co), is in short supply. The situation is
exacerbated due to the environmental impact in mining and refining these minerals, and the need
to dispose the battery waste stockpile. Thus, developing recycling capabilities of used lithium-ion
batteries becomes more critical.

The market has responded to these needs, and many are capturing the opportunities. More and
more recycling companies are popping up around North America. Late last vear, a Canadian firm
began constructinga US $175 million plant in Rochester, N.Y. When completed, it will be the largest
lithium-ion battery-recycling plant in North America. The plant will have an eventual capacity of
25 metric kilotons of input material, recovering 95 percent or more of the cobalt, nickel, lithium,
and other valuable elements.

Areas of Focus

Enhancing the customer experience: Maxvolt Energy works closely with customers and dealers to
understand their needs. By focusing on innovation, the company ensures its batteries and energy
solutions remain the preferred choice in a competitive market.

Product strategy: The company is strengthening its product portfolio by focusing on high-demand
models and reliable designs. This approach helps improve inventory management, profitability,
and working capital efficiency.

Market presence: Maxvolt Energy is expanding its retail reach across Tier [, I, and III cities,
increasing penetration in local markets while also targeting bigger corporate clients for long-term
partnerships.
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Digital transformation: The company is adopting digital tools across operations to improve
efficiency. Employees are being trained to adapt to these changes so that Maxvolt Energy stays
prepared for future growth.

Sustainability focus: Maxvolt Energy is actively developing second-life applications for batteries
and exploring reuse opportunities for new products. The company is also progressing toward
obtaining approvals for battery recycling to build a complete circular ecosystem.

Growtih Strategies

Expansion: Maxvolt Energy is increasing its retail presence to reach more customers while also
building stronger partnerships with large corporate clients.

Distribution strength: The company is enhancing its dealer and distributor network across India
and working with partners to strengthen supply chain and manufacturing capabilities. It is also
adding new segments such as ESS batteries and inverters for energy storage solutions up to 1
MWh, and in EV segment creating a market for L4 and LS auto rickshaws and loaders.

Brand building: Maxvolt Energy is investing in its brand to build stronger awareness and trust
among customers, with the goal of expanding its presence both in India and globally.

Innovation: The company is committed to continuous improvement, focusing on advanced
technologies, higher product quality, and new solutions that match changing market needs.
Sustainability leadership: Maxvelt Energy is strongly focused on second-life battery applications
and recycling initiatives, aiming to build a complete and sustainable energy ecosystem for the
future.

Financial Performance:

(Amt. in T lakhs)
Profit & Loss FY 2024-25 FY 2023-24 YoY(%)
Summary
Revenue 10928.26 4878.61 124
EBIDTA 157558 694.20 127
& of Revenue (bps) 1441.75 142295 +18.8 bps
Profit After Tax 1011.68 520.83 9432
[%of Revenue (bps) | 925,74 106758 T-1418bps
(Amt in ¥ Lakhs)
Debt Summary FY 2024-25 FY2023-24 '
| Long-Term Debt 586.73 123.77
Current Maturities of Long-Term 0 25.62
Debt
[ Short Term Debt 363 46490
Key Ratfio FY 2024-25 FY2023-24
Debt Equity Ratio 0.09 0D.11
| ROCE 0.20 0.53
| ROE 0.15 0.45
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Human Resources

Maxvolt understands the invaluable centribution of its Human Resources, acknowledging that its
employees are the primary drivers of the organisation’s growth. The Company adopts a people-
centric approach, investing significantly in employee training and wellness initiatives. It remains
committed to strengthening its workforce, paralleling the robustness of its financial performance.
It prioritises employee engagement and skill enhancement by regularly conducting in-house
training and development programmes designed to boost competencies and the overall
productivity.

The Company's HR policy fosters a culture of inclusion and diversity, promotes trust and
transparency, and inculcates a sense of teamwork among the emplovees to build a future ready
organisation. It also promotes equal opportunity and competitiveness to unleash the full potential
of its employees and to enhance its long-term value. The Company is committed to maintaining a
workplace free from harassment by ensuring that all its emplovees are treated with dignity and
respect, In the fiscal year 2024-25, no cases were filed under the Sexual Harassment of Women at
Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition, and Redressal) Act, 2013. Industrial relations with employees
remained cordial and cooperative. As of March 31, 2025, the Company's total employee strength
stood at 120.

Information Technology

As part of its digital and IT transformation journey, the Company maintains its robust
infrastructure to stay competitive, mitigate disruptions, and ensure compliance with internal
mandates aimed at boosting enterprise efficiency. It leverages advanced IT systems, cutting-edge
technology, and digital transformation initiatives to streamline business operations. Its integrated
software system supports key functions such as Purchasing, Production, Inventory Management,
Sales, and Accounting and caters to all Strategic Business Units {SBUs].

With a forward-thinking IT budget and roadmap, the Company focusses on cloud software, data
aggregation, and emerging technelogies like AI, Machine Learning, IoT, Blockchain, and
Autonomous Databases. It also invests in cloud-based ERP, EPM, Procurement, and Treasury
applications.

The Company continues to make significant investments in software solutions and systems,
including Business Intelligence and Point of Sales to further strengthen its infrastructure
capabilities. Further, it introduces mechanisms to implement necessary checks and controls to
disseminate valuable insights and ensure accuracy of captured data.

Corporate Social Responsihility

The Maxvolt well understands its responsibility as a corporate citizen to positively impact the
society and the environment in which it operates. Through responsible investment and sustainahle
business practices, it is not only committed to conducting business in an ethical and sustainable
manner but also contributes towards the development of communities around through impactful
initiatives and create a more sustainable future for all. The key areas it has identified for CSR
projects are education, healthcare, disease prevention and treatment, safety, and the environment.

internal Control Systems

The Company employs a robust method for managing its internal control systems, tailored to the
size and scope of its operations. This approach helps the Company protect its assets, identify and
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mitigate business risks, and ensures the preparation of accurate financial records while evaluating
the reliability of financial controls and compliance with relevant laws and regulations.

The statutory and internal auditors of the Company conduct comprehensive audits across all
departments, focussing on areas such as financial reporting, taxation, corporate finance, business
recovery, and insolvency. The Audit Committee regularly reviews and assesses financial systems,
management procedures, and internal controls to ensure smooth operations, minimize risks, and
safeguard against fraud and misrepresentation. Both internal and statutory audits are carried out

to ensure adherence to regulatory standards, and the management takes corrective actions as
needed.

Cauotionary Statement

The Management Discussion and Analysis may include statements about the Company’s goals,
projections, estimates, and expectations, which qualify as “forward-looking statements” under
applicable laws and regulations. Actual cutcomes may differ significantly from these statements
due to various risks and uncertainties, such as availability of material and costs, market demand
fluctuations, competitive dynamics, regulatory and tax changes, economic conditions in India and
global markets, exchange rate variations, and other external factors influencing the Company's
business and financial performance. The Company disclaims any obligation to update, revise, or
modify these forward-loocking statements in light of future developments, new information, or
unforeseen events.

For MAXVOLT ENERGY INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Ssd/-
Bhuvneshwar Pal Singh Managing
Managing Director and CFO
DIN: 07645099

Date: 30.08.2025
Place: New Delhi
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C — 40, Second Floor, Ten Tower,
Above Indian Bank, Sector — 15,

ATEK&E ASSOCIATES Vasundhara, Ghaziabad - 201012(U_F)
l N D I A CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS Ph: +01 9818830255, +21 B8B2854825
E-Mail - atkandassociates@amail.com

caankurtaval72@email com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To,

The Members

MAXVOLT ENERGY INDUSTRIES LIMITED

{(Formerly Known As MaxVolt Energy Industries Private Limited)
(CIN No.: U0106DL2019PLC349854)

Report on the it of Standal Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of MAXVOLT ENERGY INDUSTRIES LIMITED
(Formerly Known As MaxVolt Energy Industries Private Limited) ("the Company”), which comprnises the Balance
Sheet as at 31 March 2025, and the statement of Profit and Loss Account for Year ended 31% March 2025, the
statement of cash flow for the year ended 31 March 2025 and notes to the financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
Standalone Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in cnnfﬂnnlty with the accounting principles generally accepted in India; of
the Balance sheet the Comipany as at 31% March 2025 and its Profit/Loss including the cash flow statement farilie
year ended 31 March 2025.

Basis for Opinion 1|
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under sectign 143(10) of the
Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities of Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We-are independent of the Company in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants-ofindia together with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial r;tatem'é_ritis under the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules there under, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
are sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. - =
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Key audit matters

Key audit matiers are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in ocur audit of the
financial statements of the current period. These matters were addrassed in the context of our audit of the financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters. Reporting of key audit matters as per SA 701 There are not key audit matter communicate by us to Those
Charged with Governance (TCWG) and managament

Information other than the financial statements and auditors’ report thereon
The: Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Board's Report including Annexures to Board's Report,

Business Responsibility Report but does notinclude the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon:

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in

doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone financial

statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be matenally
misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information; we are reguired to report that fact We have nothing to reportin this regard.

Emphasis of Matter

There is nothing comes to our netice while conducting the audit that requires attention and comment in the notes to
the financial statements.

Management’s and Those Charged with Governance Responsibility for the Standalone Financial
Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134{5) of the Companies Act,

2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true-and fair

view of the financial position, financial performance, and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the accounting Standards specified under:section 133
of the Act, read with rule 7 of the companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014,

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adeguate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of
the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fr‘@.uds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal fi nancréﬂ controls, that
were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting recurds relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair viewe-and. are’ Fraﬁ from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

in preparing the Financial Statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing as applicable, matters related to g{:.ng cancerrn-and using the Going Concern Basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Eﬂmpany or 1o cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so. Those Board of Direciors are also rEEpﬂnSlbLE for overseeing the Company's financial

reporting process ]
{
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our obhjectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinien
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered matenal if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the

economic decizions of users taken on the basis of these Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

» |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or
errar, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
imtentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control

s Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adeguate internal financial controls system in place and
the operating effectiveness of such contrals.

+ Evaluate the appropriatenass of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists retated to events or conditicns that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. It we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention i our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based an
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the company to cease continue as a going concern.

« Evaluate the overall presentation; structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation

Materiality 15 the magmitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statemeants that, indwidually arin

aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the standalone
financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative mateniality and qualitative factors in {1) planning
the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified
misstatements in the standalone firancial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the plan{agq_d scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have comﬁ{iéa with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

From the matters communicated with those charded with governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current pariod and are therefore the key audit matters, We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report uniess law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter
or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies [Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 {"the Order™), issued by the Central Government of
India in terms of sub-section {11} of section 143 of the Companies Act, 20132, we enclose in the "Annexure-A” a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

Asreguired by Section 143{3) of the Act, we report that:

fa) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief
were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b} In curopinion, preper beoks of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears
from our examination of those books;

fc! The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Reportare in
agreement with the books of account;

{d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014:

{e) On the basis of the written representations received from the Directors as on 31¥ March 2025 taken on record by
the Board of Directors, none of the Directors is disqualified as on 31% March 2025 from being appointed as a director
in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

{(f) In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to explanations given to us, the company is
exempt from reporting in respect of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and the
operating effectiveness of such controls.

{g) With respect to the other matters to be inciuded in the Auditor's report in accordance with the reguirements of
Sec 197(16]) of the Act as amended.

in Our opinion and best of our information and according to the nformation and sxplanation given to us, the
remuneration paid by company to its Directors during the current penod inaccordance with the provision of section

197 of the Act. _
\
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

(h} With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors] Rules, 2014, in eur opinich and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us:

i. The Company does nat have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including dervative contracts for which there were any
material foresesable losses.

itl. There were no amecunts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by
the Company.

. fa) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledze and belief, other than as disclosed in the
notes to the accounts, no funds have bsen advanced or loansd or invested (either from borrowed funds orshare
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in any other personis) or entitylies), including
foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the wunderstanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persens or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries™ or provide any guarantee, security or the like
on behaif of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(0} The management has represenied, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed in the
notes to the accounts, no funds have been received by the company from any personis) or entitylies), including
foreign entities ("Funding Parties”™), with the understanding, whether recorded in wnting or otharwise, that the
company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party {*Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantes, security or the
like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

(¢) Based on such audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstancas,
nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (i) of
Rule 11(g), as provided under {a) and (b} above, contain any material mis-statement.

v, Mo dividend have been declared or paid durng the year by the company.

vi.The company has used accounting software with an audit trail (edit log) feature throughout the year as required
under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014. As the company's current accounting software is
fully capable of ensuring that the books of account and other relevant records are retained completely in their
original format or in a format that accurately presents the information. The software ensures that the data remains
complete and unaltered, thereby maintaining the integrty and reliability of the records.

For AT K & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
FRN 018918C

Sdf-

CA. Ankur Tayal
Place: Ghaziabad (Partner)

Date: 26.05.2025 Membership No. 404791
UDIN :25404791BMIBDT1456
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Annexure &

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section
of our report to the Members of MaxVolt Energy Industries Limited (Formerly Known as MaxVolt
Energy Industries Private Limited) of even date).

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the company and books of account and
records examined by us in the normal course of audit to the best of our knowledge and belief, we state that-

(i} In respect of the company's property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
(a) {A‘.I_ The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and
situation of Property, Plant and Equipment;

(B) The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets;

(b} As explained to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the Company, the Property, Plant and
Equipment have been physically verified by the management at reasonable intervals; no material discrepancies
were noticed on such venfication;

(c) There is no any immaovable property held in the name of the company as disclesed in the financial statements.
Accordingly, the reporting under Clause 3(i)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(d) The company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Egquipment (including Right of Use assets) or intangible
assets during the year Accordingly, the reporting under Clause 3(i){d) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(e) As explained to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the Comparly, there are no proceedings
have been initiated or are pending against the company for holding any benami property under the Benami
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder.

(i) In respect of company’s inventories:

(a) Physical verification of inventory has been conducted at reasonable intervals by the management and the
discrepancies noticed on physical verification of the inventory as compared to books records which has been
properly dealt with in the books of account were not material.

e
(b) According to the information and explanations provided to us, the Company has been sanctioned Eﬁhng

capital limits; however, these limits do not exceed =5 crore. Accordingly, the requirements under paragraph 3{ii)(b)
of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(iii) The company_has not provided any guarantee or granted any loans, secured or unsecured, me
other parties during theyear

{iv).In respect of the company’s property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

{a) {A) The company has maintained proper records showing full partlculars including quantitative details and
situation of Property, Piant and Equipment; e~

(B} The company has maintained proper rEcnrd&_shnwfngﬁﬁ;l{-;ﬁrﬁmiars.nf intangible assets.

o
I
f
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(b} As explamned to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the Company, the Property, Plant and
Equipment have been physically verified by the management at reasenable intervals; no material discrepancies
were noticed on such verification;

{c] There is no any immovable property held in the name of the company as disclesed in the financial statements.
Accordingly, the reporting under Clause 3(i)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

{di The company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use assets) or intangible
assets during the year. Accordingly, the reporting under Clause 3li}(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

{e) As explained to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the Company, there are no proceedings
have been initiated or are pending against the company for holding any benami property under the Benami
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 {45 of 1388) and rules made thereunder.

(v) In respect of company’s inventories:

{a) Physical verification of inventory has been conducted at reasonable intervals by the management and the
discrepancies noticed on physical venfication of the inventory as compared to books records which has been
property dealt with in the books of account were not matenal.

(b) According to the information and explanations provided to us, the Company has been sanctioned working capital

limits; however, these limits do not exceed #5 crore. Accordingly, the requirements under paragraph 3(ii)(b) of the
Order are not applicable te the Company.

(vi) The company has not provided any guarantee or granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies or any
other parties during the year.

{vii) In respect of statutory dues:

(@l The company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Services Tax, provident
fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added
tax, cess and any other statutory dues to the appropriate authorities. According to the information and explanation
given to us there were no outstanding statutory dues as on 31st March 2025 for a period of more than skt months
from the date they became payable

(b} As explained to and on the basis of our examination of the records of the company, there is no sta‘tufﬁﬂ"?“ﬂﬁfé's
referred to in sub-clause (a) that have not been deposited on account of any dispute.

{viii) The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transactions, previously unrecorded as income in the books
of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year 1|

(ix) In respect of borrowings: i

{a) In our opinion, during the year, the company has not defaulted in repayment Df-l{:ﬂﬂ?_ﬁi_ﬁr_gtﬁrér_ borrowings or in
the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

(b) the company has not been declared a willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender:

(c) The Company has utilized the money obtained by way of term L&ans dunng the year for the purposes for which
they were obtained.
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{d) On an overall examination of the balance shest of the Company, we report that no funds raised on short term basis
have been used for long term purposes by the company

(e) The company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the cbligations of its
subsidiares, associates or joint ventures. Accordingly, clause 3{ixi{e) is not applicable.

{f) The company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in'its subsidiaries, joint ventures or
associate companies. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(f) is not applicable.

(x) In respect of issue of securities:

(a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has during the year raized
moneys by way of initial public offer (IPO), The Company raised a total of £2,40,00,000 during the financial year 2024-25
through IPO. This included the issuance of 24,00.000 fresh eguity shares on 18-02-2025 at a premium of $170 per share.
The Company has applied the moneys raised through IPO for the purposes for which they were raized. The utilization of
the funds is consistent with the objects stated in the offer document. There has been ne deviation or variation in the use
of funds which could be considered material.

{b) During the year, the company has nct made any preferential allotment or convertible debentures (fully, partially
or optionally convertible) during the year. Accordingly, clause 3{x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

{xi} In respect of fraud:
(a) Nao fraud by the company or any fraud on the company has been noticed or reported during the course of audit.

{b) Na report under sub-section {12) of secticn 143 of the Companies Act has been filed by the auditors in Form
ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government;

(c] No whistle-blower complaints had been received by the company

(xil) The company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, clause 3(xi){al, 30«i)(b) and 3{xii)ic) of the Order is not
applicable.

{xi) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, all transactions with the related
parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of Companies Act, where applicable and the details have been
disclosed in the financial statements, as required by the applicable accounting standards; T’

(xiv) In respect of internal audit, there is no obligation as per secticn 138 of the companies act, 2013 on the company
to conduct the internal audit.

{(xv) in our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has ﬁ'tnt entered into
any non-cash transactions with Directors or persons connected with him and hence, provisions of Sr;ttlun 182 of the
Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

(xvi) (a) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of
1934). Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable:

(b) The Company has net conducted any Non-Banking Fmancm{ or Housing Finance activities without a wvalid
Certificate of Registration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank of Iaﬁla as per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.
Accordingly, clause 3(xvilib) of the Order is not applicable. f
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{c) The Company Is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve Bank of
India. Accordingly, clause 3 (xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

(d} The Group does not have any €IC as part of the Group.
{xvii}) The company has not incurred cash losses in the financial year and in the immediately preceding financial year

Doviil) The previous auditor °S. Yadav & Company” resigned during the year following the Company’s decision to
pursue a listing on the stock exchange, which reguired the appointment of a peer-reviewed auditor. In compliance
with this requirement, the Company has appointed a peer-reviewed auditor in accordance with applicable
regulatory guidelines.

(xix) On the information obtained from the management and audit procedures performed and on the basis of the
financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, our
knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence
supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit repert that company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at
the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a penod of one year from the balance sheet date We,
however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the company. We further state that our
reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any
assurance that all labilities falling due within & penod of one year Trom the balance sheet date, will get discharged
by the company as and when they fall due

{(xx} In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the provisions of Section 135 of
the Companies Act, 2013 with respect to Corporate Social Responsibility (C5R) are applicable to the Company and
company complied with the same.

boa) There have been no gualifications in the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order (CARC) reports of the companies.

ForATK & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
FRN 0189218C°

sd/-

CA. Ankur Tayal
Place: Ghaziabad (Partner)

1

Date: 26.05.2025 Membership No. 404791
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REVIEW REPORT ON THE AUDITED FINANCIAL RESULTS FOR
HALF-YEARLY ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2025 OF MAXVOLT ENERGY INDUSTRIES LIMITED
PURSUANT TO THE REGULATION 33 OF SEBI (LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE
REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2015, AS AMENDED

To

the Board of Directors of

MAXVOLT ENERGY INDUSTRIES LIMITED

(Formerly Known As MaxVolt Energy Industries Private Limited)
(CIN No.: U40106DL2019PLC349854)

Opinion

1 We have reviewed the accompanying statement of audited financial results of MAXVOLT ENERGY INDUSTRIES
LIMITED (the "Company”) for the Half-Yearly ended 31st March 2025 together with the notes thereon (the
"Statement”) attached herewith, being submitted by the Company pursuant to the reguirement of Regulation 33
of the Securities and Exchange Board of india (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Reguirements) Regulations,
2015, as amended ('Listing Regulations')

2 The Statement, which is the responsibility of the Company's management and approved by the Company's

Board of Directors, has been prepared in accordance with the recognition and measurement principles laid down

in Indian Accounting Standard 34 "Interim Financial Reporting”, prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies

Act, 2013, as amended, read with relevant rules issued thereunder and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India and in compliance with Regulation 33 of the Listing Regulations. Our responsibility is toi

report on the Statement based on our review.

3. We:conducted our review of the Statement in accordance with the Standard on Review Engagements (SRE} 2410
"Review of Interim Financial Information Performed by the Independent Auditor of the Entity", issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. This standard reguires that we plan and perform the review to obtain
moderate assurance as to whether the Statement is free of material misstatement. A review of iiite'r'rm financial
information consists of making inguiries, primarily of persons responsible for financial and accounting matters,
and applying analytical and other review procedures. A review is substantially less in scopé than an audit
conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing and consequently does not-enable us to/ebtain assurance
that we would become aware of all significant matters that might be identified in an audmE ‘Accordingly, we do not
express an audit opinion.
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4 Based on our review conducted as stated in paragraph 3 above, nothing has come to our attention that causes us
to believe that the accompanying Statement prepared in accordance with the recognition and measurement
principtes laid down in the applicable Indian Accounting Standards ('Ind AS') specified under Section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013 a5 amended, read with relevant rules issued thersunder and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India, has not disclosed the other information reguired to be disclosed in terms of the Listing
Regulations, including the manner in which it 1s to be disclosed, or that it contains any material misstatement.

For AT K & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn No. 018918C

Sd/-

CA Ankur Tayal

Partner

Membership No. 404791
UDIN:

Date:

Place: Ghaziabad
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MAKVOLT EMERGY INDUSTRIES LIMITED

MAXVCLT ENERGY INDUSTRIES UMITED (Formarly Known a5 MaxVol Enargy industnies Private Limited )
F-108, Plot Neo. 1 F/F United Piaza, Community Centre, Karkardaama, MNew Delhi - 110093
CIN Noo: U40106DLZ01SPTC 349854

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31st March

Amountin Tiakhs

Memibership No: 404791 I'|

Place: New Delhl

UDIN: 25404791BMIBDT1456
Dated: 26 May 2025

PARTICULARS NOTE 31022025 310324
A)  ECQUITY AMD LIABILITIES
1 SHAREHOLDERS'S FUNDS
{a)  SHARE CAPITAL 1 108035 776.38
ib} RESERVE AND SURPLUS 2 5770493 37874
86133 1,15514
2 NON CURRENT LIABILITY
{a) LONG TERM BORROWINGS 3 58673 13377
(b}  DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY 4 138 310
(¢} LONG TERM PROVISIONS 5 13.68 768
60373 13456
3 CURRENT LIABILITY
(2} SHORT TERM BORROWINGS 6 263.00 464 .90
(o)  TRADE PAYABLES 7 '
-MICRO AND SMALL ENTERPRISES 10299 5571
OTHER THAN MICED AND SMALL ENTERFRISES T18.75 42095
(c) CTHER CURRENT LIABILITES B m 2B2.79
{d) SHORT TERM: PROVISIONS g 39657 GE 88
087,57 1,861.24
TOTAL 955268 3,15093
g ASSETS
1 MNON CURRENT ASSETS
{a] PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 3’5&#5 10676
(b} INTANGIBLE ASSETS 4_1_5.1 637
4085 51 118.00
3 CURRENT ASSETS
(a) CURRENT INVESTMENT 10 '1}55?1.45: Jaer
()  INVENTORIES 11 199532 135057
{c)  TRADE RECEIVABLES 12 3.080.10 £55.39
{d)  CASHE CASH EQUIVALENT 13 13231 276
(e  SHORT-TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES 14 1.276.09 44554
8,147.17 3,03293
TOTAL 9,552 6& 315063
Significant Accounting Policies and Notes are Integral Part of Financizl
Statement
For M/ ATK & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directars of
Chartered Accountants hax\elt Energy Industrizs Ltd.
FRN:-0I18918C
—al
Sdy- 5d/- Sd/-
CA Ankur Tayal
{Rartner} Managing Director and CFO Whole Time Director

(Bhuvneshwar Pal Singh] (Vichal Gupta)
DIN-0764506% DIN-07842571
Sd/-
Rajri
Company Secretary
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MAKVOLT EMERGY INDUSTRIES LIMITED

MANVOLT ENERGY INDUSTRIES LIMITED [Formerly Known 23 MaxVait Energy Industries Private Limiezd |
F-108, Plot Me. 1 FF United Plaza, Community Centre, Karkardoorma, New Delhi - 110052
CIN Mo.: U401 060 201SFTCI 49854

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 315T MARCH, 2025

Amountin % lakhs

(PARTICULARS NOTE 31.03.2025 31032024 |
REVENLE . . . |
REVENUE FROM DPERATION (GROSS} 1 10,786.52 433715
DOTHER INCOME 7 15154 a1 de
TOTALINCOME 1092826 A8FRE1
EXPENSES
COST OF GOODS 50L0D s E BBEERD 3,813 35
PLIBCHASES 13 = =
CHANGES IN INVENTORY 10 {70.1%] {oe0)
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES 21 45369 210.697
FINANCE COST 12588 4319
DEPRECIATION & AMORTISATION EXPENSES ﬂ.ﬁ 1687
OTHER EXPEMSES 72 29057 162.68
TOTAL EXPENSES 953563 424458
PROFIT BEFORE TAX 135263 E3a.p4
LESS: TAX EXPENSES
PRCVISION FOR TAX 380.68 10993
DEFERRED TAX CHARGES (CREDIT) .28 3.28
TOTAL TAX EXFENSE 38085 11333
PROFIT AFTER TAX 101168 C3083
EARNING PER-EQUITY SHARE
{1} BASIC 1152 441
FRILUTED 1168 7.07
Significant Accounting Policies and Motes are Integral Part of
Financial Statemsnt
For /s ATK & Astociates
Chartered Arcouniants For and on behalf of the Bosrdof Directors of
FEN: G1831EC MaxVolt Ensrgy Industries Ltd,
Sd/- Sdf- Sal /-
€A Ankur Tays! Manzging Director snd CFO Wil Time Director
{Partner] {Bhuvneshwar Pal Singh) [Vizhal Gupta)
Membership No: 404791 DIN-D7645032 DIN-GT242571

Place: New Delhi
UDIN: 25402731BMIBOT1456
Dated: - 28 May 2025

&d/-
Rajmi
Company Secratary
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MAXVOLT EN'EBE‘FIND‘UE'R!ES LIMITED

Motes 29: Solvency

Fimamoal statemearnss

Mumermt

Nu me ra t

Denomimator -

Ratio Numeratar prcy sl Denominator st Mt o 31.03.2025 31.03.2024 hanae | Reasen for variance
Increasz due to
Current ratio Current Asssts 914717 3092 93 Current Lizhilities 208757 145432 438 2.07 111.55% | increase in current
197, 032, gssets
Dﬂh‘“ i Equity Total Debt e T ME b % BRE1a 11550 .09 .11 -20,19%
: Diebt service =
s T;::m Interest & Lease
Dbt Service Fenice = Payments + Decrease due to
Coverage rabio after taxes + Non- 1,068.74 537.80 Pringpal 3o A1 8493 1244 SLED% | ncrease in borrowings
cash operating Repayments
expenses
. Met Profits after R Decrease due to issue
: h L4 i EBEI 3T 115514 0.15 045 -67.30% g
ratio taxes — Preference | 101168 | 52083 | Equity i
Inventory : : &
e Cost of goods zoid £,598.42 3.811.66 Bverage Inventory 167280 74.77 5.14 4.36 17.96%
Trade Met credit sales = S ) Decrease due to
Feceivable ; : 186775 3EFSL 5.75 13.15 -56,24% | increase of sales during
ot ki gg mﬁ sales 10,746.6 2 | 483715 | Receivable "1 | e
; = e R - Invchrease dueto
B | =i : Avera ade :
T’“"‘P*-”‘_"-“HF S “‘_’& sl oo s L 929.20 s3g91 9:33 4,54 105.29% mmﬁwm
: Warking capital = Decrease due to
Met Capital Met sales = Total Pharront -adiite. - ) . : . y
: ) " 058, 15B861 1.52 3.08 -50.69%
Tumover Ratio | safes - sales return | 10,796.62 | 9837.15 | cyrrent liabilities ' E’gﬁ of seiehuging
TS Esles =Tk - il S Fafotin
Net Profit ratio | Net Profit : sales - sales 1074662 483715 0.13 0.13 -1.14%
1,392.63 | 63%.04 i
Capital Emplayed
Return on Feowiing e = Tangible Net . Dmaa&edmin
Canital interest and taxes | 151851 | 677.23 Worth + Total 744806 1778391 0.20 0.53. “1.50% | increas= in sales during
Tax Liability |
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MAKVOLT EMERGY INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Faocz| satements

MAXVOLT ENERGY INDUSTRIES LIMITED [Formerty Known as MaxValt Enarsy indusirnes Private Limitad )

F-108, Fiot Mo, 1 F/F United P!aza, Community Centre, Karkardooma, New Defhi - 110082
CIN Moo U401060120108PTC3409854

CASH FLOW STATEMENT (A= Far AS 3)
For the Pericd Endad31.03.2025

Amount in Tiakhs

Farciculars STEImE 31032028
A. Casn flow from Operating Activities ]
Net Profit before taxation and extraordinary it=ms 139353 3404
Adjustrments for
Depreciation and Amortizaticn Expenses 5786 1697
Finance Expenze Provision for Gratuity 12588 3352
- 337
DCperating grofit before working capitat changs & others 157558 E3190
Adjustments for current asssts & corrent lizbiliny
{D=creazes)/ Incoresse in trade payshles {210.05) 0555
{Decrease]/Increase in Short Term Provisions 295,700 (24}
{Decraass)/increaszs in Long Term Pravisions 599 -
{Decrezsa)/ Incresse in othar current [izbifity 243.23 23333
Decrzase/ {Increase] ininventory {E‘“-?P {35L60)
Decrease/ |Inorezse] in Trads receivabies Eﬁ_ﬁ_‘:‘li: {5T49E]
Decreese/|Increass] inshort term loan B advances (2531 77) {453.80)
Decrazsa/ (Increaze) in Current Invastmant = (7E.87)
Cranges.in Working Cagits! [6.026.27) {1339.59)]
Cash from operating activities before prior period & extra ordinzry ftems - -{17.8%
Income Tax Paid =
Cash inflow | (Dutfitw) from operating activities 1T TFEAET])
B. Cash flow from investing achvities
Purchaze of fived assets {349.45) {ras)
Cash Infiow / [outfiow] fram investing activities [Z45.4E) [73.01]
L. Cash flow from financing sctivities
Increase/{ Decrease}) of long term barrowings 457 9o 57.54
increase/{Decrease) in short term borrowings (101.54) 23955
Procced from lssus of shares 4653451 SE5.ES
Financa Expenses (125 55) [2B:53)
Cashifnficw / (utficw) from finandng acivties A935 5 AT
D. Met increass in cash & cazh eguivalents {A+8+C) fulra At 080
E. Czsh & cash equivaients at the beginning of the year 17s 197
F, Cash & ce=h squivalents 3t the end of the year 13239 276
For M/s ATK 8 Azsociates Chartared For and on benaif of the Board of Directors of
Accountants FRMN: 013918C MaxValt Energy Industries Lid.
S /- Bdyf-- Sdi-
CA Ankur Tayal Managing. Dirsctor and CFO Whols Tims Director
{Partner) [Bhuvneshwar Pal Singhl {Vishal Gupts)
Membership No: #3793 N-O7R45095 DiN-O7842571
Flace: Mew Dsihi
UDIN: 25804731BMIBDTi455
Dated: 26 May 2025 Sdf-
Rajni
Company Sacretary
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MAXVOLT ENERGY INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Simanoil sistameni

NOTE 3 : LONG TERM BORROWING As ft'SI.QE.ZﬂZ_S AsAt31.03.2024
mountin % lakht |

Secured

{a) Term Loans / Demand Loans

From Bank & Financial Institutions 193.75 11471

From Others = -
Sub-total (a) 193.75 114.71

Unsecured

(b) Term Loans

From'Bank & Financial Institutions 382.99 0.06

From Others = -
Sub-total (b) 392.99 9.06

(c) Loan and advances from related parties & shareholders (Unsecured)

From Shareholder = -
Sub-total (c) = -

(d) Loan and advances from others

Inter-Corporate Borrowings = -
Sub-total (d) - -

Total Long Term Borrowings [a+b+c+d) 586.73 123.77

Note:

(1] Some Borrowings are primarily secured by the way of lien marked on Fixed Deposits and hypothecation of Plant & Machinery, Stock, Boek Debis

(ii) .5ome Borrowings are further secured under CGTMSE Scheme of the Government of India,

NOTE 4 : DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY /ASSETS

Major Compornents of deferred tax arising on account of iming differences are:
Timing Difference Due to Depreciation

Deferred Tax Azsets/{Liahilities) [4)

Provision of Gratuity as at the yvear end

Total Timing Difference

Deferred Tax Assets/[Lisbilities) (B)

Cumulative Balance of Deferred Tax Assets/(Liabilities) [Net) (A+B)

AsAt31.03.2025 | AsAt31.03.2024
AmpuntinTiakhe | AmountinXlokie |
(16.66) (14.52)
[4.63) [4.04)
45 338
45 3.8
125 0.94
(3.38) (3:10)
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MAXVOLT ENERGY INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Simanoil sistameni

NOTE 5 : LONG TERM PROVISIONS As %E& ntﬂ%% g%g As %ﬂ_’ll‘] ﬂ n?li% 4
Provision for Gratuity-Long Term 13.68 7.69
Total 13.68 7.69

NOTE 6 : SHORT TERM BORROWING As At 31.03:2025 As itm3l 03.2024
Secured
[a) Term Loans / Demand Loans
From Bank & Financial Institutions 235.95 285.11
From Others =

Sub total (a) 23596 265.11
Unsecured
[b) Term: Loans
From Bank & Financial Institutions 100 16139
From Others =

Sub total (b) 100 101.39
c} Loans and advances from related parties & shareholders
[(Unsecured)
From Shareholder/Related parties 27.04 72,78

Sub total (c) 27.04 72.78
d] Current Maturity of Long Term Debis = 25.62

Sub total (d) . 25.62

Total Short Term Borrowings (a+h+c+d) 363 164.9

MNote:

(i] Some Borrowings are primarily secured by the way of ien marked on Fixed Deposits and hypothecation of Plant & Machinery,

Stock, Book Debts.

(i) Some Borrowings are further secured under CGTMSE Scheimme of the Government of India.

NOTE 7 : TRADE PAYABLE As At31.63.2025 As At 31.03.2024
Amaiint in % iakihs Arount in Tlakhs
Micro and Small Enterprises 18209 35,71
Other than Micro and Small Enterprizes 71875 030,95
Total 82174 1,036.60
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Simanoil sistameni

AT

MAXVOLT ENERGY INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Ageing of Trade Payable as on 31.03.2025

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particular :
= More than 3
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years i Total
years
i) Tutaj. outstanding dues nf:tlncru 101.00 o . 102,09
enterprises and small enterprises
(ii) Total outstanding dues of
creditors other than micro 682,38 35.98 039 | - 718.75
enterprises and small enterprises
(iii) Disputed dues of micro
enterprises and small enterprises
(iv] Disputed dues of creditors
other than micre enterprises and = = - -
zmall enterprises
Total 784.37 36.98 039 | - 821.74
NOTE 8 : OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES As At 31.03.2025 AsAt31.03.2024
T : i Lok
Advances Received from Customers 63.65 115.27
Security Deposit Z -
Salary & Wages Payahle 4763 231332
Statutory Dues Payables 384.64 11515
Platinum Corporate Card 388 | -
Reimbursement Account AL 0,23
Total 50625 262.79
NOTE 9 : SHORT TERM PROVISIONS A= At 31.03.2025 AsAt31.03.2024
Amount in Tlakhe Amount in= fakhs

Provision for Gratuity 0.26 0.02 -
Income tax Provisions net of Advance tax and TDS 380.68 06.86
Cther Payable 15.64 -

Total 396.57 0688
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MAXVOLT ENERGY INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Simanoisl statemeni

NOTE 10: CURRENT INVESTMENT As At31.03.2025 As At 31.03.2024
Amount in % lakhe Amount in % lakhs
Investment in MF 1279 78.67
Fixed Deposits 2,650.66
Total 2,663.45 78.67
NOTE 11 : INVENTORY As A£31.03.2025 AsAt31.03.2024
Arnount in ¥ lakhs Amount in % lakhs
Raw Material 191952 1.345.06
Work in Progress 75.69 551
Finished Goods - >
Tools & Corisumahiles - -
Total 1,995.22 1,350.57
NOTE 12 : TRADE RECEIVABLES As At 31.03.2025 AsAt31.03.2024
Amountin S iakhs ' i
Debtors Considered Good 3.,080.10 655.39
Taotal 3,080.10 655.39
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Lessthan | 6 months M than
Particulars me 1-2 vears | 2-3 years are Total
6 Months: | -1 yvear 3 years
Trade receivables
i) Undisputed Trad ivablas —
(i) Undisputed Trade receivable 2583688 | 12493 1183 | - - 3,080.10
considered good
(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables— which | = = s 2 =
have significant increase in credit risk
(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables - ) _ B B ) B
credit impaired
(iv]) Disputed Trade receivables - - = ~ 2 _ ~
considered good
(v) Disputed Trade receivables — which g _ = _ = =
have significant increase in credit risk
(vi) Dizsputed Trade receivables - credit = . . . = :
impaired
2,836.88 124.93 1183 | - = 3,080.10
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MAXVOLT ENERGY INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Simanoil sistameni

A

Similar information shall be given where no due date of payvment is specified in that case disclosure shall be

from the date of the transaction Unbilled dues shall be disclosed separately.

NOTE 13 :CASH & ﬂAEHEt!UI?M.ENTS As At 31.03.2025 AsAt31.03.2024
Amount in % lakhs Amount in ¥ [skht
Balance with Banks 11813 0.89
Cash in hand i4.18 1.87
(As Certified By The Management)
Total 132.31 276
NOTE 14: SHORT-TEREM LOANS AND ADVANCES A< At 31.03.2025 A= A$31.03.2024
Amount in 3 jakhs Armount in X lakhs
Advance to Suppliers ¥¥s5a2 230.65
Balance With Revenue Authorities 250,98 54741
With Bank 0.05 -
Advance to Staff including Directars 5.05 0.88
(Others Short Term Loans & Advances 24437 171.6
Total 1,276.08 945,54
NOTE 15 : OTHER CURRENT ASSTES As At 31.03.2025 ﬂ;s‘&t 31{?#%
Amount in % lakhs
Total - -
NOTE 16 : REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS As At 31.03.2025 AsAt31.03.2024
Amountin T lakks Amount in Tlakhs
SALES
Sale of Product 1094282 4904473
Scrap Sale £1.21 156
10,934.03 494p.29
Sales Return [23742) (109141
Total 10,746.62 4.,837.15
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MAXVOLT ENERGY INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Simanoil sistameni

NOTE 17 : OTHER INCOME

As At 31.03.2025

AsAt31.03.2024

Amount in % {akhs Amount in X lakhs

Income from redemption of Liquid Fonds 10.38 417
Freight Outward 291 -
Exchange Fluctuation 13948 11.568
Interest Income 27.01 2177
Write Off 181 2.43
Misl Income 0.03 14

Total 181.64 41458
NOTE 18 : COST OF GOODS SOLD A= At31.03.2025 As At31.03.2024

Amount in Tiakhs Armount in % takhs

Opening Stock of Raw Material 1.345.06 384.06
Add: Purchases of Raw Material 9,026.45 4,666.05
Add: Direct Expenses 216.62 97.21
Less: Closing Stock of Raw Material 1919.54 1345.06

Total 8,668.60 3,812.26
NOTE 19 : CHANGES IN INVENTORY As At 31.03.2025 -As At 31.03;21}:24:
Closing Inventories
Work in Progress 7569 351
Finished goods
Sub Total (&)
Opening Inventories
Work in Progress 5.51 40
Finished goods
Sub Total (B)

Total (70.18) {0.60)
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MAXVOLT ENERGY INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Simanoil sistameni

NOTE 20 : EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES A= At 31.03.2025 AsAt31.03.2024
AmoUnt in % Jaktys AmountinTlakhe

Salary 32316 166.78
Directors Bemuneration ;LA 288
Esl 272 13
Third Party Manpower Charges 3248 -
Hecruitment Charges 5.47 -
Interns Stiphend 034 -
Gratuity Exp .22 %38
EFF 20.65 %25
Staff Welfare Expenses 2143 6.33

Total 463.69 210.07
NOTE 21 : FINANCE COST As At 31.03.2025 AsAt31.03.2024

Amount in Tiskhs Amount in % lakhs

0D Interest 2115 1653
Interest on Machine Loan 217 142
Interest on Business Loan RE AL 9.18
Interest on Term Loan 421 3.37
Interest on Minti Finance 19.35 7.41
Foreclosure Charges 18.76 -
Interest on Capsave Finance J51 - )
LC Charges 0.08 0.86
Loan Processing Fees 15.87 3.81

Total 125.88 43.19
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MAXVOLT ENERGY INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Simanoil sistameni

NOTE 22 : OTHER EXPENSES

A= At 31.03.2025
Amodntin S [akhs

As At31.03.2024
Amountin % lakhs

Discount = 0.08
Detention Charges = 0.21
After Sales Service - 1.68
AuditFee - 0.25
Brokerage Expenses - 1.6
CSR Expenses 45 -
Bank Charges 3.65 8.53
Freight Outward Expenses 56.56 3.58
Business Promotion 15.27 1.73
Conveyance Charges 34 0.06
Courier Charges Expenszes 152 411
Electrical Expenses 15.87 5.16
G5T Expenses 211 8.04
Housekeeping Expenszes 3.54 D22
Membership Fees 0.34 -
Insurance Expenses 1447 10.65
Internal Audit Charges 68.43 4.86
Legal Expenses D.17 1332
Income Tax 511 -
Legal & Professional Charges 1306 3204
Interestand Late Fees 274 1.02
Office Cleaning Expenses - 0.09
Office Expenses 6.28 6.76
Printing & Stationery Expenses 581 4.52
Packing Materis! Frpenses 126 7.36 '
Rates & Taxzes 1534 0.G2
Rent 225 1206
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Simanoil sistameni

MAXVOLT ENERGY INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Repair and Maintenance Expenses 052 0.38
Software Expenses 7.36 1.53
Marketing Expenses 1367 213
Loss in Transit = 0.6
Telephone Expenses 227 1.02
Travelling Expenes 5212 21.39
Water Expenses = 0.2
Total 290,57 162.68

Bartniars e el
z:ﬂrf;:‘t:ihutahle to the equity holders of the 1.011.67 2083
Weighted average number of equity shares for EPS [in 865713348 7.763.028.00
nos)
Adjustment for calculation of Diluted EPS (in nos) = -
".E“-;esig{li'lzdnz;rerage number of equity shares for Diluted §,657,13348 7.763.828.00
Earnings per shars
Basis 11.69 707
Diluted 11.69 7.07
Face value per equity share [ %.) 10 10

NOTE 24 : Other Statutory Informations

(1} The Company do not have any Berami property, where any proceeding has heen initiated or pending against the Company for

holding any Benami property

(2) The Company do not have any transactions with companies struck off.
(3) The Company do not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period,
(4] The Company have not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Corrency during the financial year.

(5) The Company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity{ies), including foreign entikies

[(Intermediaries) with the understandingthat the Intermediary shall:
(a) directly or indirectly lend or investin other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or n-hehalf ofthe

company [UltimateBeneficiaries] or

(b} provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

—



MAXVDLT ENERGY INDUSTRIES LIMITED Eimancial stutametts

[(6) The Company have not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the
understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:
(2] directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the

Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries] or

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,

(7) The Company have not any such transaction which is not recorded in the boeks of accounts that has been surrendersd or
disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1561 [such as, search or survey or any other
relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

NOTE 26: Commitments and contingent liabilities

The Company does not have any contingent liability as on March 31, 2025.

NOTE i?:fegmant reporting

It has been determined that the Company's operations are concentrated within a single business and geographical
segment. Therefore, segment reporting disclosures are not applicable,
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MAXNVOLT ENERGY INDUSTRIES LIMITED

MNote: 25 CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPOMSIBILITY - C5R EXPENDITURE

PARTICULARS

As At 31.03.2025

As At 31032024

Grossamount reguired to be spent by the Company

Amount spent during the period [ year

A) Amount spent during the penod [ year
i ConstructionfAcquizition of any assset

ii. On purposes other than (i) above

Add: Utilised from excess spentin last year

Total

BlAmount yet to be spent during the period fyear
i.ConstructionfAcquisition of any asset
ii.DOnpurposes other than {ij above

Add:Utilised from sxcess spent in last year

Tatal

ClDetails related to spend/unspent obligations
i.Contribution to Public Trust
ii.Contribution to Charitable Trust
ii.Unspent emount in relation to:
-Ongoing project
-Other than ongoing project

D)Bisclosure as per Section 135(5) - Gther than ongoing project
Opening balance

Amount deposited in Specified Fund of 5ch. Vil within & months
Amount required to'be spent during the period [ vear

Amount spent during the period,/year

Clozing balance

Closing bzlance
-with Company

-in separate C58 unspent account

£.49

450

450

450
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MAKVOLT EMERGY INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Note: 28 LIST OF RELATED PARTIES AS PER AS - 18

Particdls= Marmes of related parties Warmes o reisteRenD:
Mul=sh Gupta Dérector; retired we.f. 29.11 2022
Vishai Gupta Whole Time Director
Directors and Key Brivneshwar Pal Singh Marizging Director BCFD
htz=nagement Persannel Ajay Kumar Independent Directar
(=nar) Prest Kumar Independent Director
Kawita Dixit independent Director
Rajni Company Secrstary
Pradsep Gupt= =
Relstives of KMP = - Father of Vishal Guptz
Rajshr} Moonys Wife of Bhumeshuar Pal Singh
Enterprizes i which
M= Valts AMP ; . ; .
KM/ Relativas of KNP zan Propristarshipcencern of PradespGupts 1o VishalSupe=
exgrcise signifincant - b
ilastis Wz Ultra Ensrgy Prapristorship concern of Mukesh Gupts .
{Amount in T Lakhz)
i) Transactions with Tireceors/KhP 31-Mar25 31-Mar-24
1 Vishal Qupts
Director Remuneration 1993 igmn
(Crpening balence of Loan =kan by the Comoany 1752 14.00
Loan Taken by the Company 3.00 1204
Lo=n’ Aepaid by the Company 17.00 BE5b
Imterest on Loan @ien/Gives z -
Oosing Balance 3532 1752
2 Bhuvmeshwar Pal Singh
Director Remunsration given 2110 1711
Opening balance of Loan tken by the Company 3452 1206
Loain Taken oy the Company = 13037
Losn Repaid by the Company 1100 107831
Imtersst on Loan taken/Given - -
Oozng Balance 2352 3452
3 A=y Kumar
Director Remumeration given miz -
4 Prest. umar
Dirsctor Remunerstion given 114 -
5 Kawits Dixit
Director Remurnizration given 0.0 - -
[ Rajni
Remunaration given 140 -
(i1} Transactionz with RBefatives of Directors/KMP
F Lalas I|
= Volts AMP - 102610 I
Wi's Uitrz Enargy 1,000.82 =
i Purchazes
M= Voliz AMP - 10709
W= Ultra Ensrgy IL7AE "
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MAXVOLT ENERGY INDUSTRIES LIMITED

7. HIXED ASSETS

MAXVOLT ENERGY INDUSTRIES LIMITED [Formerly known &8 MaxVolt Energy Indusirss Private Limited
108, Plot No. 1 7/F United Plaza, Community Centre, Karkardooma, New Delhi - 110092
CIN Mo U4010601 203 9PTC345854

PARTICULARS OF DEPRECIATION ALLOWABLE AS PER COMPANIES ACT, 2013

Fimamoal statemearnss

Amount in % lakhs

GROSS BLOCK DEPRECIATION NET BLOCK
PARTICULARS ASOND10424] ADDITIONS | DEDUCTIONS ASON ASONOCIOSIE| FORTHE | ADIUSTMENT ASON ASON ASON
31.03.2035 PERICO 3103 2025 31.03 2025 31.03.2024
Property, Ptant & Eguwipment
Furnitiire 28.01 018 2819 438 .12 : 10.50 17689 2362
Office Equipmeant 476 870 13.45 213 329 - 546 2.00 258
Plant & Machinery 10234 15007 25241 333 32.09 " 5542 19699 79.01
Computer 3.10 1477 17.87 252 445 : 657 1080 0.58
Vehicle 142 0.67 708 .47 042 . 0.84 120 0.95
Building - 133.44 133 44 - 372 - 372 12871 =
TOTAL [A] 139.63 30783 44745 3287 5500 - 8756 354 49 106.76
Intangible Atcots '
Intangible 1751 A1.62 54.13 G4 6.97 = 1311 41.02 837
TOTAL (B) 1951 A41.67 54.13 6.14 6.97 B 13.11 41.02 6.37
TOTACTEFE] 152,18 34545 50158 33.01 57.06 S6.07 40551 11333
B T
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MAXVOLT ENERGY INDUSTRIES LIMITED

MAXVOLT ENERGY INDUSTRIES LUMITED [Formerly Known az MaxVolt Enorgy Industriss Frivate Limited )
F-108, Plot Mo 1 F/F United Plaza; Community Centra, Karkardooma, New Deihi- 110092
CiN Mo- U401060DL2019PTC 349854

PARTICULARS OF DEPRECIATION ALLOWABILE AS PER THE INCOME TAX ACT, 1961

Fimamoal statemearnss

Amountin % lakhs

Sr.No. |DESCRIPTION OF THE RATE GRUSS BLOCK DEPRECIATION
ASAT ADDITIONS ON ADDITIONS SALE DR ASAT ALLOWABLE WDV
ASSET/BLOCK OF ASSETS 5 01-D4-2024 OR BEFORE AFTER TRANSFER 31-03-2025 DURING AS AT
03-10-2022 03-10-2024 THE-PERIOD 31-03-2025

{A] |BLOCK-15%

Plant and Machinery 15% 10254 14161 17.23 : 26199 3795 22403
(8] |BLOC¥-1D%

Fribitine & Faitires 10% 2711 018 : 2729 272 2457
() |BLOCK-a20%

Computer a0% 2.40 £33 844 : 1717 518 11.99f
(D) |BLOCY-25%

Intangible Assets 253% 233 2455 17.07 : 5001 1037 39,54
(E) |BLOCK-10%

Building 10% z 95 43 37.01 : 13344 1149 121 5.

TOTAL 14044 76803 8052 = 45089 £7.72 37717
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICY ﬂuND. NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A. Corporate information

Maxvolt Energy Industries Limited was oniginally incorporated as a Private Limited Company under the name of
“Maxvolt Energy Industries Private Limited” on May 02,2019 under the provisions of The Companies Act, 2013 with
the Registrar of Companies, Ahmedabad. Subseguently, pursuant to Special Resolution passed by the Shareholders
at the Extraordinary General Meeting, held on June 18, 2024, the Company was converted into a Public Limited
Company and consequently the name of the Company was changed from "Maxvolt Energy Industries Private
Limited” to *Maxvolt Energy Industries Limited” wvide a fresh certificate of incorporation Conseguent upon
conversion to public company dated August 27, 2024, issued by the Registrar of Companies, Central Processing
Centre, Manesar, Gurgaon and beanng CiMN U40106DL2019PLC349854,

The company is primarily engaged in the business of manhufacturing of lithium-ion batteries of various range
supplied through a diversified sales & distribution mix viz. authorised dealers and distributors and OEMs under the
brand name of “MaxVolt Energy” widely used in Electric Vehicles (ie. E-Scooter, E- Rickshaw, E-Cyclel, Energy
Storage and Electronics Gadgets eic.

B. STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of preparation of financial statements

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the Generzlly Accepted
Accounting Principles in India (Indian GAAPs) to comply with the Accounting Standards notified under the
Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 {as amended) and the relevant provisions of the Companies Act,
2013,

The Financial Statements are prepared as a Going concemn concept under the historical cest cenvention on an
accrual basis unless specifically stated.

Use of estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with the generally accepted accounting principles
reguires management io make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities
as at the balance sheet date, the results of operation during the reported period and disclosure of contingent
liabilities as on the reporting date. Management believes that the estimatas used in the preparation of the financial
statements are prudent and reasonable and are in their best knowledge of current event and actions. Actual-sesulis<
could differ from these estimates and differences between actual resuits and estimates are recognized in the period
in which the results are known or materalize: Significant estimates used by the management in the preparation of
these financial statements include provision for employee benefits, estimates of the economic useful life of plant
and eguipment, provision for expenses, provisioning for taxation etc.

The following significant accounting policies are adopted in the preparation and presentation Gf ,l'_hese financial
statements:

| §

1. Revenue Recognition

a} Revenue is recognized to the extent that is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the
revenus can be reliably measured.

b) Revenue from sale of goods is recognized when the significant risk and rewards are transferred as per the terms of
=ale. Revenusasare recorded at invoice value, S g

cl Income in respect of interest, insurance claims, export beﬁéﬁts, subsidy etc. is recognized to the extent the
company is reasonably certain of its uitimate realization. I
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2. Inventories

Inventories compnsing of raw materials, work in progress and finished goods are valued at lower of cost or net
realizable value. Cost here represents landed cost including custom duty in case of imports and is net of duty
which is convertible or refundable. Cost of inventories is determined on FIFO basis. Net realizable value is the
estimate of the selling price in the ordinary course of business less further cost expected to be incurred Tor s
completion and disposal. The work in progress and finished goods cost includes raw material cost, variable cost
and manufacturing overheads.

3. Foreign Currency Transaction:
a) Foreign currency transactions are recorded at the exchange rates prevailing on the date of the transaction.

b} Short term monetary items denominated in foreign currencies (such as cash, receivable, payable etc) outstanding
at the year end, are translated fre-converted at the year-end exchange rate unless covered by a forward contract.

¢! Any gain or loss arising on settlement and / or translation of short-term maonitory transaction in foreign currency is
accounted for in the statement of Profitand Loss.

4. Employee Benefits
- Defined Benefit Plans

For Defined Benefit Plans, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the Projected Unit Credit Method, with
actuarial valuations being carried out at the date of each statement of financial position.

The retiremeant benefit oblizations recognized in the statement of financial position represents the present value of
the defined benefit obligations reduced by the fair value of scheme assets. Any asset resulting from this calculation is
limited to the present value of available refunds and reductions in future contributions to the scheme.

5. Borrowing Costs

Borrowing cost includes interest and amortization of ancillary costs incurred in connection with the arrangement of
borrowings. Borrowing costs directly atiributable to the acguisition, construction or preduction of an asset that
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the
cost of the respective asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period they ocour

6. Accounting for Taxes on Income

Tax expense comprises of current and deferred tax. Current income tax is measured at the ameount expected to be paid
to the tax authorities in-accordance with the Income-tax Act, 1961 enacted in India. The tax rates and tax laws used to
compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporiing date.

1
al Deferred income taxes reflect the impact of timing differences between taxable income and acé:@untiﬁg income
oridinating during the current year and reversal of timing differences for the earlier years. !leaﬁarlrn.al::l’g tax is measured
using the tax rates and the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. -

bl Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable timing differences. Deferred ta¥ a’essétﬂs. are recognized for
deductible timing differences only to the extent that thers is reasonable |::re.rl:a.u'rt3,lr that sufficient future taxable
income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realized: In situations where the Company has
unabsorbed depreciation or carry forward tax losses, all deferred tax assets are recognized only if there is virtual
certainty supported by convincing evidence that they can be realized against future taxable profits.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets are reviewed at Eﬂc:h reporting date. The company writes-down the
carrying amount of a deferred tax asset to the extent that itis no longer reasonably certain or virtually certain, as the
case may be, that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which deferred tax asset can be realized.
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Any such write-down is reversed to the sxtent that it becomes reasonably certain or virtually certain, as the case may
be, that sufficient future taxable income will be available

7. Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the pencd attributabie to eguity
shareholders (after deducting attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during
the period. Partly paid equity shares are treated as a fraction of an eguity share to the extent that they are entitled to
participate in dividends relative to a fully paid equity share dunng the reporting penicd. The weighted average number
of equity shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for events such as bonus issue, share split and reverse share
split (consolidation of shares) that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding
change in resources.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the ret profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of
all dilutive potential equity shares.

8. Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and eguipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses. The inbial cost of a property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, any cosits directly
attributable to bringingthe property, plantand equipment into the locationand condition necessary for it to be
capable of operating in the manner intended by managementAn item of property, plant and eguipment is
derecogmzed upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to:arise from the continued use of the
asset. Any gain or loss ansing on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined
as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognized in statement of
profit and loss.

The Company provides depreciation on items of property, plant and eguipment on Written Down Vatue (WDV)
Method based on useful life specified as below:

fsst Useful Life (in years)

Building 60

Plant & Machinery 15

Furniture & Fixtures 10 —
Motor Vehicle 10

Office Equipment 5

Computer & Accessories (including Server) 3

Depreciation amount for asset 1s the cost of an asset less jts estimated residual value I case of Impairment
depreciation is provided on revised carrying amount over its remaining useful life. Ty

9. Intangible Assets

Intangible assets are stated at cost of acquisition net of recoverable taxes less accumulated amortisation/ depletion.
All costs, including financing costs till commencement of ::ﬁm'_r_nér[:iai production, net charges on foreign exchange
contracts and adjustments arising from exchange rate variations attributable to the intangible assets are capitalised.
Depreciation on Intangible assets is calculated on Written down value method at useful life of 10 years.
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10. Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Provisions are recognized only when there is a present obligation as a result of past events and when a reliable
estimate of the amount of obligation can be made.
Contingent Liability is disclosed for:

a) Possible obligation which will be confirmed only by future events not wholly within the control of the Company, or

b) Present obligations ansing from the past events where it 15 not probable that an outflow of resources will be
reguired to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the ameunt of the obligation cannot be made.

c) A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is & possible obligation or a present obligation that may,
but probably will not, require an outflow of resources. Where there1s a possible obligation or a present obligation
that the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision cr disclosure s made.

d) Contingent Assets are not recognized in the financial statements since this may result in the recognition of income
that may never be realized.

11. Investments

Investments, which are readily realizable and intended to be held for not mere than one year from the date on which
such investmentis are made, are classified as current investments. All other investments are classified as long-term
investments.

On initial recognition, all investments are measured at cost The cost comprises purchase price and directly
attributable acguisition charges such as brokerage, fees and duties.

Current investments are carried in the financial statements at lower of cost and fair value determined on an individual
investment basis. Long-term investments are carried at cost. However, provision for diminution in value is made to
recognize a decline other than temporary in the value of the investments.

On disposal of an investment, the difference between its carrying amount and net dispesal proceeds is charged or
credited to the statement of profit and loss

12. Segment Accounting
Business Segment

a) The business segment has been considered as the primary segment.

b} The Company’s primary business segments are reflected based on principal business activities, the nature of
service, the differing risks and returns, the organization structure and the internal financial reporting system.

¢} The Company's primary business includes manufacturing and trading of Uthium-ion batteries. This we only
segment as envisaged in Accounting Standard 17: "Segment Reporting’ therefore disclosure for Segment reporting is
notapplicable,

13. Cash Flow Statement:

1
Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit. before tax is adjusted f{:fr the effects of
transactions of non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and
item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows. Cash flows from Dperatlng, investing
and financing activities of the Company are segregated, accordingly,
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MaxVolt Energy”®

Energizing future

F 108, Plot No. 1 F/F United
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